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MAJOR FUNDS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

GeneralFund

SpecialRevenue Funds
Coal Severance Fund

Life and Health Fund

CapitalProjects Funds
Capital Reserve Fund
Airport Access Road

Debt Service Funds

Tax Increment Financing Debt Service

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Enterprise Funds
Airport

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

SpecialRevenue Funds
Morgantown Public Library

Library Expendable Trust Fund

Enterprise Funds
Parking Authority

Municipal Building Commission
Morgantown Utility Board
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NONMAJOR FUNDS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
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Economic Development Grant

Community Development Block Grant
Police Forfeiture
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Local Law Enforcement Grants
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Court Technology

DiscretelyPresented Component Unit
Board ofParks and Recreation

CapitalProjects Funds
Business Improvement District

Tax Increment Financing

DiscretelyPresented Component Unit
Capital Projects - Clay Batelle Branch

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Policemen's Pension and Relief

Firemen's Pension and Relief

Employee's Retirement and Benefit

DiscretelyPresented Component Unit
Library Nonexpendable Trust

Library Endowment Fund
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Council
City ofMorgantown
Morgantown, West Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We haveaudited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fimd,
and theaggregate remaining fimd information of theCity of Morgantown, West Virginia, asof
and for the year endedJune 30,2015 and the relatednotes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the CityofMorgantown, West Virginia's basic financial statements as
listed in the table ofcontents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthese financial statements
in accordancewith accoimting principles generally acceptedin the United States ofAmerica; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance ofinternal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation offinancial statements that are fi^ee fi*om material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Morgantown Utility Board, whichrepresents 70.56
percent, 135.65percent, and 29.96 percent, respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues
of the City of Morgantown. Those statements wereaudited by other auditors whose rq)ort has
been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Ae
Morgantown Utility Board, is based solely on the report ofother auditors. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditingstandards generallyaccepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued bythe Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require fiiat we planand
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

122 N,OakSt • P.O. Box1916 • Clarksburg, WV 26302-1916 • (304) 624-5564 • Fax: (304) 624-5582 • www.tetiickbartlettcom
1517MaryLouRetton• Fairmont, WV26554• (304)366-2992 • Fax: (304)366-2370
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An audit involvesperformingprocedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether
dueto fraud or error. In making those riskassessments, theauditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of thefinancial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate inthe circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing anopinion onthe effectiveness oftheentitys intemal control. Accordingly, we express
nosuch opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used
and thereasonableness of significant accounting estimates made bymanagement, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.

Webelieve thattheaudit evidence wehave obtained is sufficient andappropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statementsreferred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial positionof the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretelypresented componentunits, each major fund, and the aggregateremaining
fund informationofthe City of Morgantown, West Virginia, as ofJune 30,2015, and the
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereofand the
respectivebudgetarycomparison for the General Fund and the Coal SeveranceFund for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Emphasis ofMatter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements for the year ended June 30,2015, the City of
Morgantown, West Virginia adopted new accounting guidance, GASB 68, Accountingand
Financial Reportingfor Pensions - an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 27, GASB 69,
Government Combinationsand Disposals ofGovernment Operations, GASB 70, Accountingand
Financial Reportingfor Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, and GASB 71, Pension Transition
for Contributions Made Subsequent to the MeasurementDate - an amendment ofGASB
Statement No. 68. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

OtherMatters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management's discussionand analysis that accounting principles
generallyaccepted in the United States of Americarequire to be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial
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statements, is required bythe Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it tobe
anessential part ofthefinancial reporting for placing thebasic financial statements inan
appropriate operational, economic, orhistorical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by thismissing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica require that the
schedule ofproportionate share ofthe net pension liability, schedule ofCitys contributions, notes
to required supplementary information, schedule ofchanges in net pension liability and related
ratios multiyear —Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund, schedule ofnet pension liability multiyear
—Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund, schedule ofcontributions multiyear —Firemen's Pension
and ReliefFund, notes toschedule ofcontributions - Firemen's Pension and ReliefFimd,
schedule ofchanges innet pension liability and related ratios multiyear - Policemen's Pension
and ReliefFund, schedule of the net pension liability multiyear —Policemen's Pension and Relief
Fund, schedule of contributions multiyear —Policemen's Pension and ReliefFund, and notes to
schedule ofcontributions —Policemen's Pension and ReliefFund, schedule ofchanges inpension
liability and related ratios multiyear —Employee Retirement Fund, schedule ofnet pension
liability multiyear —Employee Retirement Fund, schedule ofcontributions —Employee
Retiranent Fund, notes to schedule of contributions —Employee Retirement Fund, schedule of
proportionate share of the netpension liability —Morgantown Utility Board and schedule of
contributions - Morgantown Utility Board onpages 99 through 118 bepresented tosupplement
thebasic financial statements. Such information, although nota part of the basic financial
statements, is requiredby the Governmental AccountingStandards Board,who considersit to be
an essential part of the financial reportingfor placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Wehave applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in theUnited States ofAmerica, which consisted of inquiries of management
about themethods of preparing theinformation and comparing theinformation forconsistency
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge weobtained during our audit ofthebasic financial statements. We donotexpress an
opinion orprovide anyassurance on theinformation because thelimited procedures donot
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide anyassurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose offorming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Cityof Morgantown, WestVirginia's basicfinancial statements. The
combming andindividual nonmajor fund financial statements arepresented forpurposes of
additionalanalysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of passenger facility charges is presented forpurposes of additional analysis as
specified in thePassenger Facility Charge Audit Guide forPublic Agencies, issued bythe
Federal Aviation Administration and is not a required part of the financial statements. The
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schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards ispresented for purposes ofadditional analysis as
required byU.S. Office ofManagement and Budget Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local
Governments, andNon-Proflt Organizations, and is also not a required part ofthe basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the schedule ofpassenger
facility charges and the schedule ofexpenditures offed^al awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived jfrom and relate directly to theunderlying accounting and other
records used toprepare thebasic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditingprocedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and otherrecords usedto prepare the basicfinancial statements or to the
basicfinancial statements themselves, and otheradditional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in theUnited States ofAmerica. Inouropinion, the
combining andindividual nonmajor fund financial statements, theschedule of passenger facility
charges andthe schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have alsoissuedour report dated
March 2,2016, on our consideration ofthe City ofMorgantown, West Virginia's internal control
over financial reportingand on our tests of its compliancewith certainprovisionsoflaws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purposeofthat report is to
describe the scopeof our testingof intmial control overfinancial reporting andcompliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reportingor on compliance. That report is an integralpart ofan audit performed in accordance
with Government AuditingStandards in considering the City of Morgantown, West Virginia's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 2,2016



Assets

CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government Component Units

Governmental Business-Tvpe
Activities Activities Total

Moreantown

Utilitv

Board

Moreantown

Public

Librarv

Board of

Parks and

Recreation

Commission

Parkine

Authority

Municipal

Buildine

Commission

Cash $ 8,705,935 $ 615,569 $ 9,321,504 $ 1,400,820 $ 683,925 $ 348,018 $ 433,277 $ 148,877
Investments 1,585,279 -0- 1,585,279 7,352,923 1,444,549 -0- 920,653 -0-
Receivables 5,843,944 75,372 5,919,316 2,024,606 -0- 1,520 62 2,007,223
Internal balances 777,217 ( 607,846) 169,371 -0- -0- ( 159,397) ( 9,974) -0-
Inventory 42,789 11,878 54,667 1,199,423 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Prepaid expenses 6,043 14,562 20,605 -0- 4,217 -0- -0- -0-
Restricted assets 3,756,333 -0- 3,756,333 5,486,211 1,418,271 -0- 37,925 528,264
Capital assets, net 14,692,278 25,643,649 40,335,927 202,902,254 2,110,365 3,579,262 6,295,019 12,046,638
Deposits and prepayments -0- -0- -0- 806,695 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Deferred financing costs -0- -0- -0- 552,004 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Accrued utility revenue -0- -0- -0- 1.194.724 -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total assets 35.409.818 25.753.184 61.163.002 222.919.660 5.661.327 3.769.403 7.676.962 14.731.002

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and proportionate share
ofcontributions

Employer contributions subsequent to measurement
period

Unamortized bond discount refunding loss
Total deferred outflows ofresources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

2,518,163

-0-

-0-

26.521

2.544.684

37.954.502

121,087 2,639,250

-0-

-0-

-0-

121.087

25.874.271

-0-

-0-

26.521

2.665.771

63.828.773

555,799

-0-

-0-

-0-

555.799

-0-

365

83,055
lOi

83.420

78,112

-0-

-0-

-0-

78.112

78,721

-0-

-0-

-0-

78.721

-0-

-0-

-0-

101.289

101.289

223.475.459 5.744.747 3.847.515 7.755.683 14.832.291



Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accraed payroll
Accrued expenses
Billing services payable
Disallowed charges payable
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenues
Other accrued liabilities

Customer deposits
Accrued administrative costs on bonds
Accrued compensated absences
Advances on construction
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Difference betweenexpectedand actual experience
Net difference between projected and actu^
investmentearningson pension plan investments
Total deferred inflow ofresources

Total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTD)

JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government Component Units
Board of

Governmental
Morgantown Morgantown Parks and

Business-Tvoe Utilitv Public Recreation
Activities Activities Total Board Librarv Commission

; 683,026 $ 349,267 $ 1,032,293 $ 1,115,578 $ 9,291 $ 88,262
315,021 13,421 328,442 645,965 -0- 74,740

-0- -0- -0- -0- 30,396 -0-
-0- -0- -0- 285,370 -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

1,627,285 -0- 1,627,285 295,910 -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- 843 -0- -0-
-0- 620,000 620,000 171,936 -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- 657,026 -0- -0-
-0- -0- -0- 8,608 -0- -0-
-0- 41,234 41,234 -0- 62,377 -0-
-0- -0- -0- 12,037,911 -0- -0-

616,521 26,319 642,840 3,946,333 2,542 56,544
104.294.199 1.476.775 105.770.974 96.915.282 199.304 879.566
107.536.052 2.527.016 110.063.068 116.080.762 303.910 1.099.112

2,666,150 107,037 2,773,187 491,307 -0- 177,649

-0- -0- -0- -0- 176.478 -0-
2.666.150 107.037 2.773.187 491.307 176.478 177.649

110.202.202 2.634.053 112.836.255 116.572.069 303.910 1.276.761

14,692,278 25,281,126 39,973,404 109,167,100 2,075,351 2,800,414
2,334,203

( 89.274.18n
-0- 2,334,203

( 2.040.9081 ( 91.315.0891 ( 5.858.7651
$ 23.240.218 $( 49.0Q7.482J $ 106.903.390

3,595,055 1,418,271 -0-
1.770.737 ( 229.6601

Parking

Authoritv

36,894
20,735

-0-

-0-

-0-

5,397
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

38,330
-0-

389,755
3.153.339

3.644.450

69,587

69.587

Municipal

Building
Commission

62,874
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

46,593
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

800,000
4.890.000

5.799.467

-0-

-0-

-0-

3.714.037 5.799.467

3,493,433
37,925

510.288

6,356,638
528,264

2.147.922

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
$ 5.264.359 $ 2.570.754 $ 4.041.646 $ 9.032.824



Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities

General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation

Social services

Community development
Debt service

Benefits payments
Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities
Airport

Total business-type activities

Total

Component Units
Morgantown Utility Board
Parking
Municipal Building Commission
Board of Paries and Recreation

Commission

Morgantown Public Library
Total component units

CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

PROGRAM REVENUES

NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITIGN

Primary Government Component Units

Board of
ODeratine Capital Morsantown Municipal Parks and

Charees for Grants and Grants and Govcmmental Business-Tvpe Utilitv Building Recreation
Exoenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Board Parldne Commission Commission

5,881,640 $ 317,265 $ 18,102 S -0- $( 5,546273) $ -0- $( 5,546,273) $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-
14,126,302 3,463,323 255,683 -0- (10,407,296) -0- (10,407,296) -0- -0- -0- -0-
4,425,647 -0- -0- -0- ( 4,425,647) -0- ( 4,425,647) -0- -0- -0- -0-
1.124,264 -0- -0- -0- ( 1,124,264) -0- ( 1,124264) -0- -0- -0- -0-

146,566 -0- -0- -0- ( 146,566) -0- ( 146,566) -0- -0- -0- -0-
7,873,770 27,908 564,376 -0- ( 7281,486) -0- ( 7281,486) -0- -0- -0- -0-
1,131,965 -0- -0- -0- ( 1,131,965) -0- ( 1,131,965) -0- -0- -0- -0-
5.065.147 -0- 4.861.937 -0- ( 203.2101 -0- f 203.2101 -0- -0- -0- -0.

39.775.301 3.808.496 5.700.098 -0- 130.266.7071 -0- f30.266.7071 -0- -0- -0- -0-

3.601.974 2.028.149 JQ. -0- -0- f 1.573.8251 f 1.573.8251 -0- -0- -0- -0-
3.601.974 2.028.149 -0- -0- -0- f 1.573.8251 f 1.573.8251 -0- -0- -0- .0.

43.377275 $ 5.836.645 S 5.700.098 $ -0- f30.266.7Q71 f 1.573.8251 f31.840.5321 -0- JQ. -0- -0-

25,680,672 $ 23,312,352 $ -0- $ -0- -0- -0- -0- ( 2,368,320) -0- -0- -0-
2,466,425 2,717229 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 250,804 -0- -0-

638,153 943,096 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 304,943 -0-

3,048388 1,571,017 123,030 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- (1,354,341)
1.696.089 48.099 1.620.465 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 4). -0.

33.529.727 S 28.591.793 S 1.743.495 s -0- -0- -0- -0- f 2.368.3201 250.804 304.943 fl.354.3411

10

Morgantown

Public

library

L

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

27.5251

r 27.5251



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROGRAM REVENUES

Operating Capital Moreantown
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Tvpe Utility

Functions/Proerams Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Board Paikinn

General Revenues

Taxes and special assessments:
Ad valorem $ 5,290,356 $ -0- $ 5,290,356 $ -0- $ -0-
Gas and oil severance 53,907 -0- 53,907 -0- -0-
Utility 1,052,497 -0- 1,052,497 -0- -0-
Business and occupation 17,241,569 -0- 17,241,569 -0- -0-
Wine and liquor 906,329 -0- 906,329 -0- -0-
Animal control 4,936 -0- 4,936 -0- -0-
Hotel and motel 909,023 -0- 909,023 -0- -0-
Amusement 11,392 -0- 11,392 -0- -0-
Coal severance 99,553 -0- 99,553 -0- -0-

Licenses and permits 363,138 -0- 363,138 -0- -0-
Franchise fees 404,522 -0- 404,522 -0- -0-
Interest and investment earnings 35,696 573 36,269 190,466 12,474
Video lottery and gaming income 116,584 -0- 116,584 -0- -0-
Gain (loss) on sale ofcapital assets 76,234 -0- 76,234 -0- -0-
Miscellaneous 177.692 -0- 177.692 -0. -0-

Total general revenues 26.743.428 573 26.744.001 190.466 12.474

Change in net position before transfers
between activities ( 3,523,279) ( 1,573,252) ( 5,096,531) ( 2,177,854) 263,278

Transfer between activities ( 1.058.3621 JQ. f 1.058.3621 -0. 4).
Change in net position before

contributed capital ( 4,581,641) ( 1,573,252) ( 6,154,893) ( 2,177,854) 263,278
Contributed capital -0- 405.110 405.110 9.444.573 -0-

Net change in net position ( 4,581,641) ( 1,168,142) ( 5,749,783) 7,266,719 263,278

Net position - beginning - restated f67.666.0591 24.408.360 f43.257.6991 99.636.671 3.778.368

Net position- ending $ 172.247,7001 %23.240,218 $ f49.007.4821 S 106.903.390 $ 4.041.646

Comaonent Units

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes arean integral partof thisstatement.
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Board of

Municipal Parks and Morgantnwn
Building Recreation Public

Commission Commission Library

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

439

-0-

-0-

-0-

439

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

1,360

-0-

-0-

62.114

63.474

305,382 (1,290,867)
i 71.9471 1.130.309

233,435 ( 160,558)
( 1.447.0SD ^

( 1,213,616) ( 160,558)

10.246.440 2.731.312

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

4)-

56,171
-0-

-0-

1.396

57.567

30,042
:0r

30,042

iQi

30,042

5.234.317



aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
FUND BALANCE SHEETS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government

Tax Increment

General Coal Capital Life and Financinn Access Govemmental Governmental
Fund Severance Reserve Health Debt Service Road Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash $ 1,362,315 $ 2,129 $ 4,748,687 $ 979,386 $ -0- $ 787,564 s 825,854 $ 8,705,935
Investments 250,936 -0- -0- 628,492 -0- -0- 705,851 1,585,279
Receivables, net ofallowances:

Taxes 5,011,589 28,757 -0- -0- -0- -0- 132,133 5,172,479
Accounts 354,165 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 11,439 365,604
Other 182,010 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 182,010
Giants 60,605 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 62,670 123,275
Interest -0- -0- -0- 576 4). -0- -0- 576
Bond proceeds -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Due fix>ni/(to) other funds 195,371 -0- 607,846 -0- -0- -0- ( 26,000) 777,217
Inventory 42,789 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 42,789
Restricted assets -0- -0- -0- -0- 3,756,333 -0- -0- 3,756,333
Prepaid expenses 6.043 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 6.043

TOTAL ASSETS S 7,465,823 $ 30.886 $ 5,356.533 $ 1.608.4.54 $ 3J56.333 $ $ 1.711.947 $ 20.717.540

12

Moreantowa

Public

Ubrarv

Component Units

Library

Expendable

Trust

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

JQ-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

1,418,271
^

$ 683,925 $
1,207,552

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

2,916
-0-

-0-

4^17

$ 1.898.610 $

Other

Governmental

Funds Total

S 348,018
236,997

-0-

1,520
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

(159,397)
-0-

-0-

:0-

$ 1,031,943
1,444,549

-0-

1,520
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

( 159,397)
-0-

-0-

;0-

S 424.222 $ 3.741.103



General

Fund

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

140,173
-0-

-0-

312,632
4).

:0;
452.805

460,679
144.835

605.514

60,605
42,789

-0-

6.304.110

6.407.504

CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
FUND BALANCE SHEETS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTD)
JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government

Coal Capital
Tax Increment Airoort Other Total Moreantown Librarv Other

Life and Financing Access Governmental Governmental Public Exnendable Governmental
Severance Reserve Health Debt Service Road Funds Funds Librarv Trust Funds Total

$ -0- $ 145,105 $ 3,333 $ 4)- $ 322,588 $ 71,827 S 683,026 $ 9,291 $ -0- $ 88,262 $ 97,553
-0- 4)- -0- 1,627,285 -0- -0- 1,627,285 4)- -0- -0- -0-
-0- 4)- 4)- 4)- -0- -0- 4)- 30,396 -0- -0- 30,396
-0- 4)- 4)- -0- 4)- 2,389 315,021 62,377 4)- 74,740 137,117
-0- 4)- 4)- 4)- 4)- 4)- 4)- 4)- 4)- -0- -0-
-0- 4)- 4)- -0- -0- 4). 4). -0- -0- 4). 4).
-0- 145.105 3.333 1.627.285 322.588 74.216 2.625.332 102.064 -0- 163.002 265.066

-0- -0- 4)- 4)- -0- 110,957 571,636 4)- -0- -0- 4)-
rQ: -0- -0- 4). 4). 4)- 144.835 -0- -0- -0. -0-

4)- 4). -0- 4)- 110.957 716.471 -0- -0- 4). -0-

-0- -0- -0- 2,129,048 4)- 144,550 2,334,203 4)- 1,418,271 4)- 1,418 271
-0- -0- -0- 4)- 4)- 4)- 42,789 4)- -0- 4)- -0-

30,886 5,211,428 1,605,121 4)- 464,976 1,398,812 8,711,223 189,099 -0- 261,220 450,319
-0- -0- -0- -0- 4)- ( 16.5881 6.287.522 1.607.447 -0- -0- 1.607.447

30,886 5.211.428 1.605.121 2.129.048 464.976 1.526.774 17.375.737 1.796.546 1.418.271 261.220 3.476.037

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and compensated absences
Disallowed charges payable
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Deferred revenue - taxes

Deferred revenue - other

Total deferred inflow of resources

Fund Balances

Restricted

Nonspendable
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND

BALANCES $ 7,465,823 S 311886 $ 5^56^33 $ L6Q8AS4 $ 2J56^ ^ 787.564 S 1.711.947 S 20.717.540 S 1.898.610 S 1.418.271 s 3.741.103

The accompanying independent auditor's reportandnotes are an integral partof this statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE SHEETS OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

Fund balance, fund level statementat June 30,2015

Thetotalfimd balance of theCityof Morgantown's governmental funds differs
from netposition of thegovernmental activities reported on the Statement of
Net Position as follows:

Some liabilities arenotdueandpayable in thecurrent period andtherefore,
are not reported in the fund level statements:

Accrued compensated absences
Obligationsunder capital lease
Net pension obligation
Bonds payable
Accrued other post employment benefits

Capital assets, that are used in governmental activities and are purchased
or constructed, the costs of those assets are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. However, the Statement ofNet Position includes
thoseassetsand their associated accumulated depreciation.

Deferred outflow - net difference between projected and actualinvestment
earnings on pension plan investments

Deferred outflow-changes in employerportionand differences between
contributions and proportionate share of pensionexpense

Deferred inflow —difference betweenexpected and actualexperience

Deferredoutflow—net difference betweenprojectedand actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments

Some assets donotprovide current financial resources andare reported
as deferred revenues in the fund level statements.

Unamortized bond discount

Deferred revenue

Net position ofgovernmental activities

Primary

Government

Component Units

Board of

Morgantown Parks and

Public Recreation

Librarv Commission

$ 17,375,737 $ 3,448,898 $ 27,139

( 1,103,760) -0-
( 1,517,885) ( 35,014) ( 778,848)
(76,566,075) ( 155,832) ( 157,262)
(21,036,000) -0-
( 4,687,000) -0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

14,692,278 2,110,365 3,579,262

2,518,163

-0-

( 2,666,150)

-0- 78,112

365 -0-

365 ( 177,649)

-0- ( 176,478) -0-

26,521
716.471

-0-

-0-

$(72.247.700^ $ 5.264.359 $ 2.570.754

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotes arean integral partof this statement.
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Revenues

Taxes and special assessments:
Ad valorem

Gas and oil severance

Utility
Business and occupation
Wine and liquor
Animal control

Hotel and motel

Amusement

Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits

Franchise fees

Investment income (loss)
Donations

Video lotteryand gaming income
Intergovernmental:

Federal

State

Local

Contributions finm employees
Contributions from employers
Gain (loss) on sale ofcapital assets
Other

Total revenues

aTY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

General

Fund

Coal

Severance

Capital

Reserve

Primary Government

Life and

Health

Tax Increment

Financing

Debt Service

Airport
Access

Road

Other Total

Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

Moreantown

Public

Library

Component Units
Library

Expendable

Trust

Other

Governmental

Funds Total

$ 4,039,008 $
53,907

1,052,497
17,150,309

906,329
4,936

909,023
11,392

363,138
2,875,855

647,315
404,522

18,551
18,102

116,584

255.683

-0-

13,034
-0-

-0-

76,234
158.282

-0- $

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

199

-0-

-0-

-0- $

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

5,180
13,000

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

19.250

-0- $ -0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

1,169
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

^

-0- $ 1,179,644 $ 5,218,652 $ -0- $ -0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

4)-

24,173
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

274

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

1,571,017
-0-

-0-

4,750
105,076

-0-

18,034
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

62.114

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-O-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

1,571,017
44,283

-0-

57,531
118,565

-0-

18,034
516,299

1,080,518
-0-

-0-

-0-

63.510

-0-

99,553
-0

-0

-0

-0

^

29.074.701 99.752

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

6,255
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

148,401
4,713,536

-0-

160
37.430 4.868.352 1.169
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-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

4,342
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

75,259
-0-

-0-

-0-

:0;
79.601

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

27,908
257,418

-0-

4,844
40,294

-0-

379,484

40,000
3,305

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

53,907

1,052,497
17,150,309

906,329
4,936

909,023
11,392

363,138
2,903,763

904,733
404,522
40,540
71,396

116,584

635,167

139,553
91,598

148,401
4,713,536

76,234
177.692

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

44,283
-0-

28,608
13,489

-0-

-0-

516,299
1,080,518

-0-

-0-

-0-

1.122

1.932.897 36.093.902 1.684.319 24.447 1.760.991 3.469.757



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government

General
Tax Increment Airport Other Total Moreantown Library Other

Coal Capital Life and Financing Access Governmental Governmental Public Exnendable Governmental
Fund Severance Reserve Health Debt Service Road Funds Funds Ubrarv Trust Funds Total

Expenditures
General government $ 5,420,931 $ -0- $ -0- $ 175,312 $ 268,445 $ -0- $ 8,093 $ 5,872,781 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-
Public safety 11,374,043 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 136,116 11,510,159 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Highways and streets 4,159,671 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 4,159,671 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Culture and recreation 1,141,860 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,141,860 1,568,646 9,510 3,027,227 4,605,383
Social services 146,907 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 146,907 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Community development -0- -0- 1,483,486 -0- 940,568 5,208,076 522,565 8,154,695 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Debt service - principal -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,690,375 -0- -0- 1,690,375 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Debt service - interest -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,036,590 -0- -0- 1,036,590 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Benefits payments -0- -0- -0- 4.289.803 -0- -0- 775.344 5.065.147 -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total expenditures 22.243.412 -0- 1.483.486 4.465.115 3.935.978 5.208.076 1.442.118 38.778.185 1.568.646 9.510 3.027.227 4.605.383

(Deficiency) excess ofrevenues 6.831.289 99,752 n.446.0561 403.237 f3.934.809I 15.128.4751 490.779 f 2.684.2831 115.673 14-937 f 1.269.7061 f 1.135.6261

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from debt -0- -0- -0- -0- 5,191,000 -0- -0- 5,191,000 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Operating transfers in 440,558 -0- 5,244,072 -0- 1,311,137 1,258,047 130,981 8,384,795 -0- 1,130,309 1,130,309
Operating transfers (out) f 6.535.5151 192.0001 n.543.7301 ( 80.7751 -0- -0- fl.191.1371 f 9.443.1571 -0- -0- -0-

Total other financing sources (uses) i 6.094.9571 192.0001 3.700.342 ( 80.7751 6.502.137 1.258.047 fl.060.156I 4.132.638 -0- -0- 1.130.309 1.130.309

Net change in fund balances 736,332 7,752 2,254,286 322,462 2,567,328 (3,870,428) ( 569,377) 1,448,355 115,673 14,937 ( 139,927) ( 5,317)

Fund balances at b^inning ofyear, restated 5.671.172 23,134 2.957.142 1.282.659 f 438.2801 4.335.404 2.096.151 15.927.382 1.680.873 1.403.334 397.147 3.481.354

Fund balances at end ofyear S 6.407.504 $ 3£L886 S 5.211.428 $ JL6Q5J21 $ 2.129.048 S 464.976 $ 1.526.774 S 17.375.737 $ 1.796.546 J 1.418.271 S 261.220 $ 3.476.037

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes arean integral partof the combining financial statements.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
RECONaLIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net change in iiind balance - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement ofActivities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the
life of the assets. This is the difference betweencapitaloutlaysand depreciation
in the current period

Capital leases and bonds provide current financial resources to governmental
f^ds, but entering into capital leases and bonds increase long-term liabilities
in the Statement ofNet Position. Repayment ofcapital lease obligations and
bonds are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position, while proceeds are
considered revenue in the governmental funds, but increase long-term liabilities
in the Statement ofNet Position.

Repayment ofobligation under capital lease
Repayment ofbonds
Proceeds from bond issuance

Some expenses reported in the Statement ofActivities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental frmds.

Increase in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in pension benefit obligation
Decrease in unamortized bond discoimts

Some revenues reported in the Statement ofActivities do not provide financial
resources that are both available and measureable for use in current activities.

Change in deferred revenues

Certain pension expense in the statement ofactivities are recognized on the accrual
basis ofaccoimting in accordance with GASB 68:

Amount ofadditional pension expense recognized at government-wide level

Change in net position ofgovernmental activities

Primary

Government

$ 1,448,355

Component Units

Board of

Morgantown Parks and

Public Recreation

Library Commission

$ 134,080 $(139,397)

( 449,571) (170,029) 21,111

184,397
1,595,000

(5,191,000)

( 19,892)
(1,860,887)
( 1,560)

162,964

2,050
-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

45,600
-0-

-0-

245,926
-0-

-0-

( 449.4471 63.941 (331798)

$(4.581.6411 $ 30.042 $(160.5581

The accompanying independentauditor's report and notes are an integralpart of this statement.
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aiY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Activities Municipal Moreantown

Airport Parkins Building Utilitv

Fimd Authoritv Commission Board Total

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash $ 615,569 $ 433,277 $ 148,877 $ 1,400,820 $ 1,982,974
Investments -0- 920,653 -0- -0- 920,653
Receivables, net ofallowances:

Accounts 30,322 -0- 162,880 1,581,769 1,744,649
Other -0- -0- -0- 415,539 415,539
Grants 45,050 -0- -0- -0- -0-

Interest -0- 62 -0- 27,298 27,360
Inventory 11,878 -0- -0- 1,199,423 1,199,423
Due from/(to) other hinds ( 607,846) ( 9,974) -0- -0- ( 9,974)
Deposits and prepayments -0- -0- -0- 806,695 806,695
Accrued utility revenue -0- -0- -0- 1,194,724 1,194,724
Prepaid expenses 14.562 -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total current assets 109.535 1.344.018 311.757 6.626.268 8.282.043

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted assets -0- 37.925 528.264 5.486.211 6.052.400

Capital Assets
Land 50,050 1,484,399 1,439,707 1,658,519 4,582,625
Intangible plant -0- -0- -0- 376,834 376,834
Land improvements -0- -0- 744,473 -0- 744,473
Building 7,923,113 -0- 15,742,250 27,448,809 43,191,059
Structures and improvements 30,820,642 9,741,706 -0- -0- 9,741,706
Water transmission and distribution system -0- -0- -0- 68,759,168 68,759,168
Sewer and storm collection system -0- -0- -0- 115,701,801 115,701,801
Treatment plant equipment -0- -0- -0- 73,189,576 73,189,576
Office furniture, equipment and computer system -0- -0- -0- 4,704,019 4,704,019
Vehicles and heavy duty equipment -0- -0- -0- 7,940,792 7,940,792
Leasehold improvements -0- 90,965 -0- -0- 90,965
Machinery and equipment 2,436,973 1,342,227 1,094,319 -0- 2,436,546
Construction in progress 2,419,053 -0- -0- 9,742,556 9,742,556
Less: Accumulated depreciation fl8.006.1821 f6.364.2781 f 6.974.1111 fl06.619.8201 f119.958.2091

Net capital assets 25.643.649 6.295.019 12.046.638 202.902.254 221.243.911
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTD)
JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS

Other Assets

Accounts receivable

Investments

Deferred financing costs
Total other assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Net difference between projected and
actual investment earnings on pension
plan investments

Unamortized bond discount refunding loss
Total deferred outflows ofresources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

Parking

Component Units
Municipal

Building

Business-Type

Activities

Airport

Fund Autlioritv Commission

Moreantown

Utility

Board Total

-0- $

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0- $ 1,844,343 $ -0- $ 1,844,343
-0- -0- 7,352,923 7,352,923

-0- 552.004 552.004

-0- 7.904.927 9.749.270

25.753.184 7.676.962

zQz
1.844.343

14.731.002 222.919.660 245.327.624

121,087
:0;

121.087

78,721
:0;

78.721

-0-

101.289

101.289

555,799
lOz

555.799

634,520
101.289

735.809

25.874.271 7.755.683 14.832.291 223.475.459 246.063.433
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aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTD)

JUNE 30, 2015

Activities Municinal Moreantown

Airport Parldne Buildine Utilitv

Fimd Authoritv Commission Board Total

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities (payable from current
assets)
Current portion obligationunder capital lease $ 26,319 $ 12,695 $ -0- $ -0- $ 12,695
Accounts payable 349,267 36,894 62,874 1,115,578 1,215,346
Deferred revenue -0- -0- -0- 843 843
Accrued payroll 13,421 20,735 -0- 645,965 666,700
Billing services collected payable -0- -0- -0- 285,370 285,370
Other accrued liabilities 620,000 -0- -0- 171,936 171,936
Accrued compensated absences 41.234 38.330 -0- -0- 38.330

Total current liabilities (payable from
current assets) 1.050.241 108.654 62.874 2.219.692 2.391.220

Current Liabilities (payable from restricted
assets)
Revenue bonds payable -0- 377,060 800,000 -0- 1,177,060
Current portion of long-term debt -0- -0- -0- 3,946,333 3,946,333
Interest payable -0- 5.397 46.593 -0- 51.990

Total current liabilities (payable from
restricted assets) -0- 382.457 846.593 3.946.333 5.175.383

Long-Term Liabilities (net of current portion)
Revenue bonds payable -0- 2,249,669 4,890,000 91,679,977 98,819,646
Obligation under capital lease 336,204 162,162 -0- -0- 162,162
Net pension obligation 1,140,571 741,508 -0- 5,235,305 5,976,813
Customer deposits -0- -0- -0- 657,026 657,026
Accmed administrative costs on bonds -0- -0- -0- 8,608 8,608
Accrued interest on bonds -0- -0- -0- 289,792 289,792
Interest on customer deposits -0- -0- -0- 6,118 6,118
Advances on construction -0- -0- -0- 12.037.911 12.037.911

Total long-term liabilities (net ofcurrent
portion) 1.476.775 3.153.339 4.890.000 109.914.737 117.958.076

Total liabilities 2.527.016 3.644.450 5.799.467 116.080.762 125.524.679
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTD)
jPUNE 30, 2015

Business-Type

Activities

Airport

Fund

Parking

Authority

Component Units

Municipal
Building

Commission

Morgantown

Utility

Board Total

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Difiference between expected and actual
experience
Total deferred inflow of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflow of

resources

Net Position

Net investment in capital sissets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 107.037 $ 69.587 $
107.037 69.587

_:0z $ 491.307 $ 560.894
_:0z 491.307 560.894

2.634.053 3.714.037 5.799.467 116.572.069 126.085.573

25,281,126
-0-

( 2.040.9081

3,493,433
37,925

510.288

S 23.240.218 $ 4.041.646 $

6,356,638
528,264

2.147.922

9.032.824

109,167,100
3,595,055

( 5.858.765)

$ 106.903.390

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integralpart of this statement.

21

119,017,171
4,161,244

( 3.200.5551

$ 119.977.860



aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Component Units
Activities Municinal Morsantown

Airoort Parkins Buildins Utilitv
Fund Authoritv Commission Board Total

Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 2,013,149 $ 2,286,713 $ 943,096 $ 23,312,352 $ 26,542,161
Fines -0- 430,516 -0- -0- 430,516
Grants 15.000 -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total operating revenues 2.028.149 2.717.229 943.096 23.312.352 26.972.677

Operating Expenses
Personal services 582,668 991,005 -0- -0- 991,005
Purchases - fuel 1,062,157 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Supplies 10,786 30,742 -0- -0- 30,742
Liability insurance 57,515 39,843 -0- -0- 39,843
Utilities 137,510 81,752 -0- -0- 81,752
General and administrative 28,030 175,147 4,948 -0- 180,095
Depreciation 1,614,945 390,455 463,396 -0- 853,851
Amortization 5,825 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Maintenance 65,126 165,964 -0- -0- 165,964
Rental lease 37,412 511,995 -0- -0- 511,995
Water operating expenses -0- -0- -0- 10,776,228 10,776,228
Sewer operating expenses -0- -0- -0- 10,012,867 10,012,867
Storm water utility operating expenses -0- -0- -0- 1.378.297 1.378.297

Total operating expenses 3.601.974 2.386.903 468.344 22.167.392 25.022.639

Operating (loss) income ( 1.573.8251 330.326 474.752 1.144.960 1.950.038

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 573 15,235 439 190,466 206,140
Gain (loss) on investments -0- ( 2,761) -0- -0- ( 2,761)
Interest and fiscal charges -0- ( 79,522) ( 143,125) ( 3,194,711) ( 3,417,358)
Amortization ofbond costs -0- -0- ( 26,684) -0- ( 26,684)
Other revenue -0- -0- -0- ( 318.5691 ( 318.5691

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 573 ( 67.0481 ( 169.3701 ( 3.322.8141 ( 3.559.2321

Changein net position before nonoperating
grants and operating transfers ( 1,573,252) 263,278 305,382 ( 2,177,854) ( 1.609,194)

Nonoperating grants - federal 365,536 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Nonoperating grants - state 39,574 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Operating transfers in (out) -0- -0- ( 71,947) -0- ( 71,947)
Transfers to other governmental units -0- -0- ( 1,447,051) -0- ( 1,447,051)
Contributed capital -0- -0- -0- 9.444.573 9.444.573

Change in net position ( 1,168,142) 263,278 ( 1,213,616) 7,266,719 6,316,381

Total net position - beginning- restated 24.408.360 3.778.368 10.246.440 99.636.671 113.661.479

Total net position - ending S 23,240,218 $ 4.04L646 % 9.032.824 $ 106.903.390 $ 119.977.860

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes arean integral partof this statement.

22



CITY OF MORGAISrrOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Activities Municinal Moreantown
Aimort Parkine Building Utilitv
Fund Authoritv Commission Board Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 2,084,418 $ 2,717,229 $ 2,510,947 $ 22,640,170 $ 27,868,346
Receipts from other sources 15,000 -0- -0- 401,982 401,982
Payments to suppliers ( 950,368) (1,361,579) -0- ( 8,389,546) ( 9,751,125)
Payments to employees ( 410.5461 ( 632.3031 -0- ( 4.409.0561 ( 5.041.3591

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 738.504 723.347 2.510.947 10.243.550 13.477.844

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
(Increase) decrease in deferred financing net
ofamortization -0- -0- -0- 1,577,162 1,577,162

Repayment ofobligation under capital lease ( 21,225) ( 10,237) -0- -0- ( 10,237)
Proceeds from new issuance -0- -0- -0- 8,549,556 8,549,556
(Increase) decrease in restricted assets 129,417 ( 142) 4,713 -0- 4,571
(Increase) decrease in sinking fund -0- -0- -0- ( 387,659) ( 387,659)
Repayments of revenue bonds -0- ( 367,808) ( 785,000) ( 4,022,314) ( 5,175,122)
Advances on construction -0- -0- -0- 2,099,497 2,099,497
Nonoperating grants 542,131 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Acquisition ofcapital assets ( 909,037) ( 163,725) -0- (16,560,303) (16,724,028)
(Increase) decrease in bond construction account -0- -0- -0- ( 348,287) ( 348,287)
(Increase) decrease in accrued administrative

cost on bonds -0- -0- -0- 1,799 1,799
Customer deposits including interest -0- -0- -0- ( 12,151) ( 12,151)
Other nonoperating income -0- -0- -0- ( 318,569) ( 318,569)
Transfers from (to) other funds -0- -0- ( 71,947) -0- ( 71,947)
Transfers to other governmental entities -0- -0- (1,447,051) -0- ( 1,447,051)
Change in other assets net -0- -0- -0- 18,012 18,012
Interest expense -0- ( 80.2781 ( 149.2461 ( 3.207.7611 ( 3.437.2851

Net cash (used in) provided by capital and
related financing activities ( 258.7141 ( 622.1901 a.448.5311 f 12.611.0181 fl5.681.7391

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Change in value of investments -0- ( 5,802) -0- -0- ( 5,802)
Proceeds from sale of investments -0- -0- -0- 2,036,870 2,036,870
Purchase of investments -0- -0- -0- ( 481,343) ( 481,343)
Investment income 573 12.487 439 194.757 207.683

Net cash provided by (used in) investingactivities 573 6.685 439 1.750.284 1.757.408

Net increase (decrease) in cash 480,363 107,842 62,855 ( 617,184) ( 446,487)

Cash at beginning ofyear 135.206 325.435 86.022 2.018.004 2.429.461

Cash at end ofyear $ 615.569 $ 433.277 $ 148.S77 $ 1.400.820 $ 1.982.974
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aTY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Business-Tvpe

Activities

Airoort

Fund

Component Units

Parking

Authority

Municipal Morgantown

Building Utility

Commission Board Total

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
proyided by (used in) operating actiyities:
Operating (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile operatingincome (loss)
to net cash proyided by (used in ) operating
activities:

$(1,573,825) S 330,326 $ 474,752 $ 1,144,960 $ 1,950,038

Depreciation and amortization 1,620,770 390,455 463,396 9,320,409 10,174,260
Loss on di^osal ofcapital assets -0- 8,481 -0- -0- 8,481
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable 71,269 -0- 1,509,925 ( 140,386) 1,369,539
Inventory 54,640 -0- -0- ( 13,378) ( 13,378)
Due from/(to) other funds 132,982 9,458 -0- -0- 9,458
Deposits and prepayments -0- -0- -0- ( 59,571) ( 59,571)
Accrued utility revenue -0- -0- -0- ( 81,506) ( 81,506)
Deferred outflows of resources —net

difference between projected and actual
investmentearningson pension plan
investments ( 121,087) ( 78,721) -0- ( 555,799) ( 634,520)

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable ( 133,540) 23,475 62,874 286,935 373,284
Deferred revenue -0- -0- -0- ( 48,308) ( 48,308)
Accrued payroll ( 6,343) 3,199 -0- 84,838 88,037
Accrued compensated absences 3,005 ( 9,246) -0- -0- ( 9,246)
Billing service payable -0- -0- -0- 2,022 2,022
Net pension obligation ( 36,404) ( 23,667) -0- ( 167,144) ( 190,811)
Deferred inflow ofresources - net

difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan
investments 107,037 69,587 -0- 491,307 560,894

Other current accrued liabilities 620.000 -0- -0- f 20.829^ ( 20.829^
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities $ 738.504 $ 723.347 $ 2.510.947 $ 10.243.550 $ 13.477.844

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are anintegral part of this statement.
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aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Variance

Actual With Final

Actual Budget to Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts fBudgetarv GAAP fGAAP Favorable

Original Final Basisl Difference Basisl fUnfavorablel

Revenues

Taxes (includinginterest and penalties);
Ad valorem $ 4,029,081 $ 4,045,081 $ 4,054,416 $ 26,189 $ 4,080,605 $ 9,335
Gas and oil severance 27,000 53,000 53,907 -0- 53,907 907
Utility 1,005,000 1,055,000 1,046,974 5,523 1,052,497 ( 8,026)
Business and occupation 13,130,000 16,685,000 17,214,756 26,813 17,241,569 529,756
Wine and liquor 715,000 800,000 929,634 ( 23,305) 906,329 129,634
Animal control 4,800 4,800 4,936 -0- 4,936 136
Hotel and motel 875,000 889,000 904,224 4,799 909,023 15,224
Amusement 5.000 12.000 11.392 -0- 11.392 f 6081

Total taxes 19,790,881 23,543,881 24,220,239 40,019 24,260,258 676,358
Licenses and permits 370,500 370,500 390,395 ( 27,256) 363,139 19,895
Chaises for services 2,981,335 2,981,335 2,853,448 ( 15,775) 2,837,673 ( 127,887)
Fines and forfeitures 613,000 613,000 618,034 29,281 647,315 5,034
Franchise fees 391,500 391,500 401,688 2,834 404,522 10,188
Contributions 94,284 94,284 18,102 -0- 18,102 ( 76,182)
Interest 10,000 10,000 17,396 4). 17,396 7,396
Intergovernmental:

Federal 244,301 244,301 229,990 25,693 255,683 ( 14,311)
State -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Local 37,000 21,900 13,034 -0- 13,034 ( 8,866)

Video lotteryand gaming income 118,000 118,000 116,584 -0- 116,584 ( 1,416)
Miscellaneous 44.300 116.800 208.996 63.700 272.696 92.196

Total revenues 24.695.101 28.505.501 29.087.906 118.496 29.206.402 582.405

Expenditures
General government 5,637,717 5,783,857 5,544,508 ( 7,705) 5,086,803 239,349
Public safety 11,089,421 11,518,606 11,374,043 2,616,142 13,990,185 144,563
Highways and streets 4,094,225 4,291,225 4,159,671 274,075 4,433,746 131,554
Culture and recreation 2,449,077 2,466,577 ( 1,787,827) 449,605 229,145
Social services 150.855 150.855 146.907 ( 3411 146.566 3.948

Total expenditures 23.421.295 24.211.120 23.462.561 644.344 24.106.905 748.559

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 1.273.806 4.294.381 5.625.345 ( 525.8481 5.099.497 1.330.964

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in 120,000 120,000 108,800 -0- 108,800 ( 11,200)
Operating transfers (out) ( 1.753.8061 ( 5.284.8061 ( 5.235.0001 ( 1.787.8271 f 7.022.8271 49.806

Total other financing sources (uses) ( 1.633.8061 ( 5.164.8061 ( 5.126.2001 ( 1.787.8271 f 6.914.0271 38.606

Net change in fimd balance ( 360,000) ( 870,425) 499,145 ( 2,313,675) ( 1,814,530) 1,369,570

Fund balance at beginning of year 360.000 870.425 1.066JI96 162.076.4371 f61.010.1411 195.871

Fund balanceat end of year S 41- S 41. S 1.565.441 Sf64.390.1121 Sf62.824.6711 $ 1.565.441
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Explanation of Differences:
(1) TheCitybudgets for capital expenditures as a current period expaiditure rather thana capital

expenditure on the accrual basis ofaccounting.

(2) TheCitydoes notbudget foraccrued compensated absences payable andnetpension obligations in
more than one yearas is required by the accrualbasis ofaccounting.

(3) The amoimt reported as "fund balance" on the budgetaiy basisof accounting derives from the basis
ofaccountingused in preparing the City'sbudget. This amoimt differs from the fund balance
reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in FundBalances because of
the cumulative effect of transactions such as those described above.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes arean integral partof this statement.
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aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

COAL SEVERANCE FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Actual

Actual Budget to Amounts

(Budgetary GAAP (GAAP

Basisi Differences Basis') (Unfavorable')

Variance

With Final

Budget

Favorable

Revenues

Interest

Intergovernmental:
State

Total revenues

$ 200

110.000

110.200

$ 200

110.000

110.200

$ 199

99,553
99,752

|o|oo111II

$ 199

99,553
99,752

$( 1)

(10.4471

(10.4481

Expenditures
General government

Total expenditures
4.914

4.914

13.333

13.333

-0-

-0-

4141

-0-

-0-

13,333
13,333

Excess ofrevenues over expenditures 105.286 96.867 99,752 zQz 99,752 2,885

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)
(120.0001

(120.0001

(120.0001

(120.0001

(92.0001

(92.0001
=Qz
::Qz

(92,000)
(92,000)

(28.0001

(28.0001

Net change in fund balance ( 14.714) ( 23,133) 7,752 -0- 7,752 (25,115)

Fund balance at beginning ofyear 14.714 23.133 23.134 zQz 23.134 1

Fund balance at end ofyear $ -0- $ -0- $ 30.886 $ ^ S 30,886 «8(25,1141

Explanation of Dififerences

The amount reported as "fund balance" on the budgetary basis ofaccounting derives from the basis of accounting used in preparing the
City's budget. This amount differs from the fund balance as derived from using the accrual basis of accounting.

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables:

Contributions

Total assets

Liabilities

Accoimts payable
Total liabilities

Net Position

Held in trust

CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA

nDUCIARY RESONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Pension and

Retirement

Funds

$ 26,701
73,425,470

135.830

73.588.001

6.537

6.537

Component Unit

Morgantown

Public

Library

$ 59,512
-0-

:0:
59.512

-0-

$ 73.581.464 $ 59.512

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report and notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
nDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Pension and

Retirement

Funds

Component Unit

Morgantown

Public

Library

Additions

Contributions:

Employer $ 3,218,970 $ -0-

Employee 1,260,282 -0-

Insurance premium tax allocation 1,030,206 -0-

Other 5.261 -0-

Total contributions 5.514.719 -0-

Investment income:

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value
of investments ( 1,494,229) ( 295)

Gain (loss) on sale of investments 2,917,672 -0-

Interest and dividends 1.498.353 1.316

Total investment income 2.921.796 1,021

Miscellaneous 374 -0-

Total additions 8.436.889 1,021

Deductions

General and administrative 381,838 1,622
Contribution refunds 203,364 -0-

Benefit payments 6.121.623 -0-

Total deductions 6.706.825 1,622

Net increase (decrease) 1,730,064 ( 601)

Net position - beginning ofyear 71.851.400 60,113

Net position - end ofyear $ 73.581.464 $ 59.512

The accompanying independentauditor's report and notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE HNANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accountingpolicies of the City ofMorgantown, West Virginia (the City), conform to generally
accepted accountingprinciples as applicableto governmental units. The following is a summary
ofsignificant accoimting policies:

(a) Reporting Entity
The City ofMorgantown, West Virginia is a municipal corporation governed under a
Council-Manager form ofgovernment. The accompanying financial statementspresent
the government and its component units as requiredby generally accepted accounting
principles.

The services provided by the government and accounted for within these financial
statements include public safety for the City, sanitation services, cultural and recreational
programs, and other governmental services.

The accompanying financial statements present the government as required by the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. In determining whether to
includea governmental department, agency, commission or organizationas a component
unit, the government must evaluate each entity as to whether they are legally separate and
financially accountable basedon the criteriaset for by the Governmental Accounting
StandardsBoard (GASB). Legal separateness is evaluatedon the basis of: (1) its
corporate name, (2) the right to sue and be sued and (3) the right to buy, sell or lease and
mortgage property. Financial accountability is based on: (1) the appointment of the
governingauthority, and (2) the ability to impose will, or (3) the providing ofspecific
financial benefit or imposition ofspecific financial burden. Another factor to consider in
this evaluation is whetheran entity is fiscallydependent on the City.

The City complieswith GASB StatementNo. 61, "7%e Financial ReportingEntity:
Omnibus an Amendment ofGASBStatements No. 14 and No. 34". This statement
establishedstandards for defining and reporting component units in the financial
statementsof the reporting entity. It defines componentunits as legally separate
organizations for which the component unit not only has a fiscal dependency on the
reportingentity but also a financialbenefit or burden relationshipmust be present
betweenthe reportingentityand the entity that is to be included as a component unit. In
addition, an entity may be included as a component unit in the financial statements of the
reporting entity, if the reporting entity's management determines that it would be
misleading to exclude them.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart ofthese notes.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Blended Component Units

The City ofMorgantown has determined it has no blended component units.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are entities which are legally separate from the City,
but are financiallyaccountableto the City, or whose relationship with the City is such
that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Because of the nature ofservices they provide and the City's ability to impose its will on
them or a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, the following component units are
discretely presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14 (as amended by GASB
Statement No. 39). The discretely presented component units are presented on the
govemment-wide statements.

The Morgantown Parking Authority serves the City of Morgantown, West Virginia, and is
govemed by a separate board ofdirectors. The Morgantown Parking Authority provides
parking areas within the City.

The Morgantown Municipal Building Commission serves the City ofMorgantown, West
Virginia, and is govemed by a separate board ofdirectors. The Morgantown Building
Commission acquires property and debt on behalfof the City.

Board ofParks and Recreation Commission serves the City of Morgantown, West Virginia
and is govemed by a separate board ofdirectors. The Board ofParks and Recreation
Commission provides recreational facilities in Morgantown for the City.

The Morgantown Utility Board services all the citizens of the City ofMorgantown.
Complete financial statements for this component unit may be obtained at the entity's
administrative offices at the following address:

Morgantown Utility Board
278 Greenbag Road
Morgantown, West Virginia 26507

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.

31



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE HNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

TheMorgantown PublicLibrary serves all of the citizens of the CityofMorgantown. The
financial statements for this component unitmaybe obtained at the entity's administrative
offices at the following address:

Morgantown Public Library
373 Spruce Street
Morgantown, West Virginia 26505

(b) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the statementofnet position and the
statement ofactivities) report information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effectof interfimd activity
has been removed fi-om these statements. Governmental activities, which normallyare
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately fi*om
business-type activities, which relyto a significant extenton fees and charges for support.
Likewise, the primarygovernment is reported separately from certain legally separate
componentunits for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The Statement ofActivities demonstrates the degreeto whichthe direct expenses ofa
given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are thosethat are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include: 1)charges to customers
or applicants whosepurchase, use, or directlybenefit fromgoods, services, or privileges
provided by a givenfunction and 2) grantsand contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements ofa particular function. Taxes and other items
not properlyincluded amongprogram revenuesare reported insteadas general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciaiy funds, eventhoughthe latter are excluded from the governmental-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds andmajor individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate colunms in the fund financial statements.
Combiningfinancial statementsfor the nonmajor governmental funds are included as
supplementary information.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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CIIY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(c) Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reportedusing the economicresources
measurement focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting, as are the proprietaryfund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamedand expenses
are recorded whena liabilityis incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Propertytaxes are recognized as revenues in the year for whichthey are levied and
collectible. Grants andsimilar items arerecognized as revenue as soonas all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reportedusing the currentfinancial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
available when theyare collectible within the current period or soonenough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues
to be available if they are collectiblewithin 60 daysof the end ofthe current fiscal
period. Expenditures generallyare recorded when a liabilityis incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims andjudgments, arerecorded onlywhenpayment is
due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, interestand special assessments are susceptible to accrual.
Also, certain taxpayer-assessed revenues suchas business andoccupation andutility
taxes are accrued as revenue at year end. Only the portion ofspecid assessments
receivable due within the current fiscal periodis considered to be susc^tible to accrual
as revenueof the currentperiod. Other receipts and taxes becomemeasurableand
available when cashis received by the government and are recognized as revenueat that
time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlierifthe
susceptible to accrual criteria aremet. Expenditure-driven grants arerecognized as
revenue when the qualifying expenditures havebeenincurred andall othergrant
requirements have been met.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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Measurement Focus and Financial Statement Presentation —Government-Wide
Financial Statements

Funds areclassified into threecategories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each
category, in tum, is dividedinto separate "fund types". Governmental fundsare usedto
account forgovernmental activities, where the focus of attention is on theproviding of
services to the public as opposed to proprietary funds where the focus ofattention is on
recovering the costof providing services to the publicthrough service charges or user
fees. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets heldby the Cityin a trustee or
agency capacity. The fund types used by the City of Morgantown are described as
follows:

Govemmental Fund Types
General Fund: The GeneralFund is the generaloperatingfund ofthe City. It is used
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

SpecialRevenue Funds: Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (otherthanspecial assessments, expendable trusts, or
major capital projects) that are legallyrestricted to expenditures for capital purposes.

Debt Service Funds: The Debt Service Funds are used to account for proceeds of
specific revenue sources (otherthanspecial assessments, expendable trusts, or major
capitalprojects) that are legallyrestricted to expenditures for debt retirement.

CapitalProject Funds: Capital Project Fimds are used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction ofmajor capital facilities
which are not financed by Proprietary Funds.

Proprietary Fund Types
Enterprise Funds: Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operated in a manner similarto private business enterprises - where the
intentof the governing bodyis that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of
providing goods and services to the general public on a continuingbasis be financed
or recovered primarilythroughuser charges; or (b) where the governingbodyhas
decidedthat periodicdetermination ofrevenueseamed, expensesincurred, and/ornet
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, publicpolicy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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The City ofMorgantown reports the following major governmental funds:

General Firnd, Coal Severance Fund, Life and Health Fund and Tax Increment
Financing Debt Service Fund.

GeneralFund: The General Fund is the general operating fund ofthe City.

Coal Severance Fund: The Coal Severance Fimd is a special revenue fund used to
receive and disburse coal severance tax revenues received from the State ofWest
Virginia.

Life andHealth Fund: The Life and Health Fund is a special revenue fund used to
receive and disburse funds for insurance benefits.

Tax Increment FinancingDebt ServiceFund: The Tax Increment FinancingDebt
Service Fundis a debt service fund used to receive and disburse funds used to repay
tax increment financing debt.

CapitalReserve Fund: The Capital ReserveFund is a Capital Projects Fund used to
receiveand disburse funds in connection with capital projects in the City of
Morgantown.

The Cityof Morgantown reports the following majorproprietary funds:

The Airport Fund.

Funds —Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the City are organized into funds, each ofwhich is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. The major fund categories for the fund financial statements
are:

Governmental Fund Types
Governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources

measurement focus. Only currentassets and current liabilitiesare generallyincluded
on their balancesheets. Their operatingstatements present sourcesand uses of
available resources during a given period.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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GeneralFund: The General Fvind is the general operating fund ofthe municipality. It
is used to accountfor all financial resources except those requiredto be accountedfor
in another fiind.

SpecialRevenue Funds: Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds
ofspecificrevenue sources (otherthan special assessments, expendable trusts, or
major capital projects) that are legallyrestricted to expendituresfor specified
purposes.

Capital Project Funds: Capital project funds account for the acquisition ofcapital
assets or constructionofmajor capital projects not being financedby proprietaryor
fiduciary trust funds.

Debt Service Funds: The Debt Service Funds are used to account for proceeds for
specific revenue sources (other than special assessments, expendable trust, or major
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for debt retirement.

Proprietaty Fund Types
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus;

the accountingobjectives are determination ofnet income, financial position, and cash
flows. All assets and liabilities associatedwith a proprietaryfund's activities are
included on its balance sheet.

Enterprise Funds: Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are
financed and operatedin a manner similarto private businessenterprises- where the
intent ofthe governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods and services to the general public on a continuingbasis be financed
or recovered primarilythroughuser charges; or (b) where the governingbody has
decided that periodicdetermination ofrevenueseamed, expensesincurred, and/ornet
income is appropriatefor capital maintenance, public policy, management control,
accountability, or other purposes.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds account for assetsheld by the Cityin a trusteeor agency capacity.
Pension trust funds are accounted for in essentially the samemanner as proprietary
fvinds.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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As a general rule, the effect of interftind activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Intemally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Expenses for the enterprise fund
include the administrative expense, and depreciation ofcapital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(d) Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net Position
The accounts of the City are organized into funds, each ofwhich is considered to be a

separate accoimting entity. The major fiind categories and account groups for the fund
financial statements are:

1. Deposits and Investments

The City ofMorgantown, West Virginia's cash and cash equivalents are considered to
be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original
maturities ofless than three months from the date ofacquisition. For purposes of
the Statement of Cash Flows, restricted assets may be considered cash equivalents
based on liquidity.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor
Certain Investments andfor External Investment Pools^the City reports its
investments at fair value, except for non-participating investment contracts
(certificates of deposits and repurchase agreements) which are reported at costs,
which approximates fair value. All investment income, including changes in fair
value ofinvestments, are recognized as revenue in the operating statement. Fair
value is determined by quoted market prices.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Short-terminvestments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.
Securities traded on a national or intemational exchange are valued at the last
reported sales price at current exchange rates. Managed funds related to the
retirementsystems not listed on an established market are reported at estimated fair
value as determinedby the respective fund managersbased on quoted sales prices of
underlying securities. Cash deposits are reported at carrying amount, which
reasonably estimates fair value.

State statutes authorize the government to invest in the State Investment Pool or the
Municipal BondCommissionor to invest such funds in the followingclassesof
securities: Obligationsofthe United States or any agencythereof, certificatesof
deposit (whichmature in less than one year), general and direct obligations of the
State ofWest Virginia; obligations of the federal mortgage association;
indebtedness or guaranteed by the federal government; pooled mortgagetrusts
(subject to limitations); indebtednessofany private corporation that is properly
graded in the top three ratings, at the time ofacquisition; interest eaming deposits
which are fully insured or collateralized; and mutual funds registered with the
S.E.C. which have fund assets over three hundred million dollars.

State statute §8-13-22c places limitations on the aforementioned investments include
the following: at no time can investmentportfoliosconsistofmore than seventy-
five percent of the indebtedness ofanyprivatecorporation nor can the portfolio
have over twenty-five percent of its portfolio consisting ofthe indebtedness ofa
private corporation's debt which matures in less than one year; at no time may more
than nine percentof the portfoliobe investedin securitiesissued by a singleprivate
corporation or association; and at no time can more than sixty percent of the
portfolio be invested in equity mutual funds.

Municipal Pension Fimdsare governed as to type of investmentsby West Virginia
Code §8-22-22, Pension funds are permitted to invest in all of the above mentioned
types of investments with the exceptions of: (1) Direct and general obligations of
the State and (2) Pooled mortgagetrusts. Additionally, pension funds are permitted
to invest funds in the following categories ofinvestments: (1) Repurchase
agreements and (2) Common stock, securities convertible into common stocks, or
warrants and rights to purchase such securities. Pension funds have different rules
concerning the purchase ofmarketable debt securities.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The following restrictions applyonlyto pension portfolios and are separate and
distinct from the limitations mentioned above: (1) fixed income securities which
are issuedby one issuer(withthe exception of the United States government) are
not to exceed five percentof the total pension fund assets; and (2) at no time can the
nonreal estateequity portion oftheportfolio exceed seventy-five percent of the total
portfolio.

2. Receivables and Payables

Interjund Transactions
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end ofthe fiscal year are referred to as either "interfund
receivables or payables" (i.e., the current portionof interfiind loans) or "advances
to/from otherfunds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds."
Any residual balanceoutstandingbetweenthe governmental activities and the
business-typeactivitiesare reported in the government-wide financial statements
as "internal balances".

Trade Receivables

All tradereceivables are shownat theirgross value and,where appropriate, are
reduced by the estimatedportion that is expected to be uncollectible.

Property Tax Receivable
All current taxesassessed on real andpersonal property maybe paidin two
installments; the first installment is payable on September first of theyearfor
which the assessment is made, and becomesdelinquenton Octoberfirst; the
secondinstallment is payableon the first daythe following Marchandbecomes
delinquent on April first. Taxespaidon or beforethe datewhenthey arepayable,
includingboth first and second installments, are subject to a discountoftwo and
one-halfpercent. If the taxes arenotpaid on or beforethe date in which they
become delinquent, including both first and second installments, interest at the rate
of ninepercent annum is added for the datetheybecome delinquent until the date
they are paid.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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B. Receivables

Receivables at year end for the government's individual major and nonmajor funds, and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate are as follows:

Coal Other Total

General Severance Life and Nonmaior Primarv Fiduciarv Comnonent

Fund Fund Health Ainxrtt Funds Government Ftmds Unit

Receivables:

Taxes S 5,011,589 $ 28,757 $ -0- $ -0- $ 132,133 $ 5,172,479 S -0- S -0-

Accounts 354,165 -0- -0- 30,322 11,439 395,926 -0- 4,006,051
Contributions -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 135,830 -0-

Other 182,010 -0- -0- -0- -0- 182,010 -0- -0-

Grants 60,605 -0- -0- 40,050 62,670 168,325 -0- -0-

Interest -0- -0- 576 -0- -0- 576 -0- 27.360

Total S 5,608,369 $ 28.757 $526 $ 75.372 $ 206.242 S 5.919.316 $ 135.830 S 4.033,411

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenue
that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connections with resources that
have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components ofdeferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental
funds were as follows:

Property taxes receivable
Business and occupation tax receivable

Total deferred revenue for governmental funds

$ 571,636
144.835

$ 716.471

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Allmunicipalities within the State areauthorized to levy taxes not in excess of the
following maximum levies per$100 of assessed valuation: On Class I property,
twelve and five-tenths cents (12.5 cents); OnClass IIproperty, twenty-five cents
(25 cents) ; OnClass IVproperty, fifty cents (50cents). Inaddition, municipalities
mayprovide foranelection to layan excess levy; therates not to exceed statutory
limitations, providedat least sixty percent of the voters cast ballots in favor ofthe
excess levy.

The rates levied by the Cityper $100ofassessed valuation for eachclassof property
for the fiscal year ended June 30,2015, were as follows:

Assessed

Class of Valuation For Current

Propertv Tax Purposes Expense

Class II $ 395,186,988 25.00 cents
Class IV $ 727,544,248 50.00 cents

3. Restricted Assets

Certainproceedsof the enterprisefund revenuebonds, as well as certainproceeds set
aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet
because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.

4. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, and infi*astructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial,
individual cost of$5,000 or more and estimated to have a useful life in excess of
one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date ofdonation.

The costs ofnormal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets
are materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized inproprietary funds
asprojects are constructed. Interest incurred during theconstruction phase of
proprietary fund capital assetsis not reflected in the capitalized valueofthe asset
constructed, net of interest earned on the invest proceeds duringthe sameperiod.

Capital assetsof the primary government, as wellas the component units, are
depreciated usingthe straight-line method overthe following estimated useful lives:

Governmental Funds

Buildings 25 - 50 years
Improvements 10-20 years
Utility plant 10-20 years
Equipment 5-25 years

Proprietary Funds

Buildings and improvements 20 - 50 years
Infrastructure 20 - 65 years
Machinery and equipment 5-25 years
Vehicles 5 years

The City has defined capital assets with an initial cost ofover $5,000 and an estimated
useful life ofgreater than one year. Capital assets donated to the City are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the date of the donation.

Discretely Presented Component Units (Having Separately Issued Financial
Statements)

Morgantown Public Library
The Morgantown Public Library depreciates all capital assets using the straight-line

method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 - 50 years
Books and videos 5 years
Machinery and equipment 5-25 years

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Morgantown UtilityBoard
The Board depreciates all long-term assets ona straight-line basis. TheBoard takes half
a year's allowance in theyear theasset is placed in service and a full year's allowance in
the subsequent years with halfa year's allowance inthe final year ofdepreciation. At
the time ofretirement ofdepreciable utility plant inservice, the amount is charged with
the book cost ofthe property retired and the cost ofremoval, and is credited with any
amounts recovered. The estimated useful lives ofthese assets are as follows:

Buildings and structures 30years
Watertransmission anddistribution lines 50 -1 GO years
Sewerand stormdrain collection system 50 years
Treatment plants equipment 10-30 years
Officefurniture andcomputers 5-10 years
Vehicles and heavydutyequipment 8-10 years

5. Compensated Absences

The liabilityfor compensated absencesreported in the government-wide financial
statements consists ofunpaid, accumulated annual sick and accrued vacations. The
liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for
both employees who currentlyare eligible to receive termination paymentsand other
employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such
payment upon termination are included.

Accumulated Sick Leave

City employees receive payment of 1/2 of the accumulated sick leave in excess of
720hours. The paymentfor sick leave is calculated at currenthourly rates and is
paid in June ofeach fiscal year. Terminated and retiringemployees hiredbefore
June 15,1993 are entitled to receive payment for Vi of their accumulated sick leave,
up to the amountaccrued as ofJune 15,1993, upon cessationofemployment.
Employees hired after that date do not receive payment for accumulated sick leave
at cessation ofemployment.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
Morgantown Utility Board
The Board providescompensated absencesfor its employees in the form ofvacation
andsick leave. Vacation leavedoesnot carryover fi*om calendar yearto calendar
year.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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6. Long-Term Obligations

In thegovernment-wide financial statements, theproprietary fimd types in the fimd
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations arereported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fimd typestatement of net position. Bondpremiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized overthe life ofthe bondsusingthe straight-line method.
Bonds payable are reported net ofthe applicable bond premium or discount.

In thefund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
anddiscounts, as well as bondissuance costs, during the current period. Theface
amoimt ofdebt issued is reportedas other financing sources. Premiumsreceived on
debt issuances are reportedas other financing sourceswhilediscounts on debt
issuances are reported as otherfinancing uses. Issuance costs are recognized as an
expense in the period incurred.

7. Fund Balances

Equity Classification
Effective July 1,2010, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions," which establishes new
standards for accounting and financial reportingthat are intended to improvethe
clarity and consistencyof the fimdbalance informationprovided to financial report
users. The classifications are based primarily on the extent to which the City is
bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which the amoimts in those
funds can be spent. Fund balances are reported in the following categories:

Net Position Classifications:

GASB 63 —Financial Reporting ofDeferred Outflows ofResources, Deferred
Inflows ofResources, and Net Position - divided net position for Government-
wide net position into three components:

a. Net investment in capital assets - consist of the historical cost ofcapital assets
less accumulateddepreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that
was used to finance those assets plus deferred outflows ofresources less
deferred inflows ofresources related to those assets.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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b. Restricted netposition - consists of netposition that is restricted by the City's
creditors (for example through debt covenants), by the state enabling
legislation (through restrictions on sharedrevenues), by grantors (both federal
and state), and by other contributors.

c. Unrestricted —all other net position is reported in this category

GASB 54 —Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions —
divided ftind balance for fund level into five components:

a. Nonspendable —Amounts that cannotbe spenteitherbecausethey are in a
nonspendable form or because they are legallyor contractually required to be
maintained intact.

b. Restricted - Amounts that canbe spentonlyfor specific purposes becauseof the
City's code, state or federal laws, or externally imposedconditionsby grantors
or creditors.

c. Committed —Amounts that canbe used only for specific purposes determined
by a formal action by the City's council.

d. Assigned - Amounts that aredesigned by the City's council fora particular
purposebut are not spendable until there is a majorityvote approval by the
City's council.

e. Unassigned- All amounts not included in other spendableclassifications.

The CityCouncil is the government's highestlevel of decision-making authority.
The Council would take formal action to establish, andmodify or rescind, a fUnd
balance commitment or to assign fund balance amounts to a specific purpose. The
government has adopteda revenuespendingpolicy that providesguidance for
programs with multiple revenue sources. For purposesoffund balance
classification, expenditures are to be spent fi*om restrictedfund balance first,
followed in orderby committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly
unassigned fund balance. The government has the authority to deviate fi"om this
policy if it is in the best interestof the City.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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8. Change in Accounting Principle

During the fiscal yearended June 30,2015 the Cityadopted the following GASB
statements.

GASB 68 -Accounting and FinancialReportingfor Pensions—an amendment
ofGASB Statement No, 27- This Statement replaces the requirements of
StatementNo. 27, Accountingfor Pensions by State and Local Governmental
Employers, as well as the requirements of StatementNo. 50, Pension Disclosures,
as theyrelateto pensions that areprovided through pension plans administered as
trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. This GASB is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Jime 15, 2014.

GASB 69 —GovernmentCombinationsandDisposals ofGovernment
Operations - This Statement establishes accounting andfinancial reporting
related to government combinations anddisposals of government operations.
This GASB is effective for fiscal years beginning afterDecember 15,2013 and
had no effect on the accompanying financial statements.

GASB 70 -Accounting and FinancialReportingfor Nonexchange Financial
Guarantees - This Statementwill enhancecomparability offinancial statements
among governments by requiring consistent reporting by those governmentsthat
extendnonexchange financial guarantees andby thosegovernments that receive
nonexchange financial guarantees. This GASB is effective for fiscal years ending
afterJune 15, 2013 andhad no effect on the accompanying financial statements.

GASB71 - Pension Transitionfor ContributionsMadeSubsequent to the
Measurement Date - an amendment ofGASBStatement No, 68 - This
Statementwill eliminate the sourceofpotential significantunderstatementof
restatedbeginningnet position and expensein the first yearofimplementation of
GASB Statement 68 in the accrual basis financial statements. This GASB is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2014.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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9, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separatesection for deferredoutflowsofresources. This separatefinancial
statementelement,deferred outflows ofresources, representsa consumption ofnet
positionthat applies to a futureperiod(s)and so will nothe recognized as an
outflow ofresources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes reporta
separate section ofdeferredinflows of resources. This separatefinancial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognizedas an inflow ofresources
(revenue) until that time.

10. Pensions

For purposes ofmeasuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of
the resources related to pensions, andpensionexpense, information about the
fiduciary net position of Cityof Morgantown, WestVirginia's Retirement System
(PERS) and additions to/deductions fi"om the Plans' fiduciary net position have been
determined on the samebasis as theyare reported by the PERS. For this purpose,
benefitpayments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investmaits are
reported at fair value.

TheCityprovides separate defined benefit pension plansfor uniformed police and
fire department persoimel. It is the City'spolicy to fund the normalcost and
amortization ofthe unfunded prior service cost.

All eligibleemployees ofBOPARC are covered under the West VirginiaPublic
Employee Retirement Systemdue to the City'selecting to be a participatingpublic
employer. All other eligibleemployees are coveredunder the City ofMorgantown
Retirement and Benefit Fimd.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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Discretely Presented Component Unit (Issuing Separately Presented Financial
Statements.

Morgantown Utility Board
Pension Plan and Deferred Compensation Plan

Plan Description - The Board contributes to the City ofMorgantown, WV (the
"City") Employee's Retirement and Benefit Fund (the Plan). The Plan is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The Plan provides retirement,
disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Major features of
the plan appear in Chapter 8, Article 22, Sections 2-15 ofthe Code ofWest
Virginia as approved by ordinance of the City Council ofMorgantown, WV.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual
covered salary and the Board is required to contribute an actuarially determined
rate. The 2015 and 2014 rates were 15.54% and 13.32% of annual covered

payroll. The Board's contributions to the Plan for the years ended June 30,2015,
2014 and 2013, were $1,077,497, $882,191 and $756,125.

Deferred Compensation Plan - Employees are eligible to participate in an IRC
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan. The maximum amount which may be
deferred is the lesser of 100% of an employee's salary or $18,000 for 2015, plus
$6,000 catch-upfor employeesover fifty yearsofage. The Board provides no
match for participant's contributions. All amounts which are deferred remain
solely the property of the Board and are subject to its general creditors.

Morgantown Public Library
All eligible employees ofthe Library are covered under the West Virginia Public

Employee Retirement System due to the Library'selecting to be a participating
public employer.

11. Stabilization Arrangements

The government has created a stabilization arrangement in accordance with West
Virginia Code §8-37-3. The government may appropriate a sum to the arrangement
from any surplus in the general fund at the end ofeach fiscal year or from other
money available. The amount ofmoney committed to the arrangement may not
exceed thirty percent of the government's most recent general fund budget. The
money may be used for any unforeseen shortfalls. The stabilization balance at fiscal
year-end was $376,729.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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12. Inventories

The City considers inventories ofmaterials and supplies, other than fuel, utilized in
governmental fund types operations as expended at the time ofpurchase therefore,
they do not appear in the municipality's financial statements. Inventories of
materials and supplies utilized in the proprietary fund type operation and fuel in
governmental fund type operations, are considered expended at the time of
consumption; therefore, balances on hand at year end, valued at cost (first-in, first-
out) are presented in the City's financial statements.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
Morgantown Utility Board

The supplies inventory is valued on average cost basis.

13. Amortization

Debt discount on bonds is amortized on the straight-line method fi*om the date of
issuance to the date ofmaturity. Amortization ofdebt discoimt for fiscal year ended
June 30,2015 was $5,825.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
Morgantown Utility Board
The Board amortizes deferredfinancing costs on a straight-line basis over the term
of the financing.

14. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformitywith accountingprinciples
generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts ofrevenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ fi-om those estimates.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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IL Stewardship,Compliance and Accountability

Budgetary Informadon
Annual budgets areadopted ona basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
forthe General Fund and the Coal Severance Tax Special Revenue Fund, except that the
amounts held for stabilization arenot included forbudgeting purposes. All annual
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Thegoverning body of the City is required to hold a meeting or meetings between theseventh and
twenty-eighth days of March to ascertain the financial condition of theCityandtoprepare the
levyestimate (budget) for the fiscal yearcommencing July 1. Thebudget is thenforthwith
submitted to the StateAuditor for approval. The governing bodythenreconvenes on the third
Tuesday in April to hear objections from the publicand formally laythe levy.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fimd, fimction and department. Transfers of
appropriations between departments and revenue related revisions to thebudget require approval
from thegoveming coimcil and then submission to the State Auditor for approval. Revisions
become effective when approved by the StateAuditorand budgeted amounts in the financial
statements reflectonly such approved amounts. The goveming bodymade the following
material supplementary budgetaryappropriations throughoutthe year:

General Fund

Amount Description

$ 4,411,266 General GovernmentExpenditure Increase
429,185 Public Safety Expenditure Increase
197,000 Streets and Transportation Expenditure Increase

17,500 Culture and Recreation Expenditure Increase

Coal Severance

Amount Description

$ 8,419 General Government Expenditure Increase

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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III. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Deposits and Investments
At year end, the government had the following investments:

Credit Risk Rating

Policemen's Pension and Relief

Money Market Fimds
Corporate Stocks
Mutual Funds

Corporate Bonds
Government Securities

Total Investments

Interest Rate Risk

Money Market Funds
Mutual Funds

Corporate Bonds
Government Securities

Less Than

1 Year

B 1,733,338
3,432,733

232,770
51,584

Fair

Value

1,733,338
4,985,326
3,432,733
2,472,899
1.795.064

14.419.360

Standard &

Poor's and

Fitch

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

A--AA

Not Rated

M
Years

-0-

-0-

1,938,858
724,156

5-10

Years

-0-

-0-

301,271
845,069

More Than

10 Years

$ -0-

-0-

-0-

174,255

Moodv's

Investment

Services

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

BAAl -A3

AAA

Total

-0-

-0-

2,472,899
1,795,064

Concentration of Credit Risk:

The government's investment policydoesnot allow for an investment in anyone issuer
that is in excess of five percent ofthe government's total investment. In accordance
with GASB StatementNo. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, it requires
disclosure when the investment in any one issuer equalsor exceeds 5% ofthe total
amount of investments. At yearend, the policemen's pension fimd had the following
investment held with these issuers:

Issuer

Money Market Funds
Morgan Stanley Bank N.A.

Fair Value Percent

$ 1,513,420 10.50%

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.

50



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
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Firemen*s Pension and Relief

Money Market Funds
Corporate Stocks
Mutual Funds

Corporate Bonds
Government Securities

Total Investments

Interest Rate Risk

Money Market Funds
Mutual Funds

Corporate Bonds
Government Securities

Less Than

1 Year

$ 1,334,441
2,736,596

184,400
52,962

Credit Risk Rating

Fair

Value

$ 1,334,441
4,046,962
2,736,596
1,942,373
L440.533

$ 11.500.905

Standard &

Poor's and

Fitch

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

A--AA

Not Rated

Izl
Years

-0-

-0-

1,522,963
572,799

5-10

Years

$ -0-

-0-

235,010
677,021

More Than

10 Years

$ -0-

-0-

-0-

137,751

Mood^s

Investment

Services

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

BAAl -A3

AAA

Total

-0-

-0-

1,942,373
1,440,533

Concentration of Credit Risk:

Thegovernment's investment policydoesnot allow for an investment in anyone issuer
that is in excess of five percent of the government's total investment. In accordance
withGASB Statement No.40, Deposit and Investment RiskDisclosures, it requires
disclosure when the investment in anyone issuer equals or exceeds 5% ofthe total
amount of investments. At year end, thepolicemen's pension fund had thefollowing
investment held with these issuers:

Issuer

Money Market Funds
Morgan Stanley Bank N.A.

Fair Value Percent

$ 1,115,790 9.70%

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Credit Risk Ratine

Standard & MoodYs

Fair Poor's and Investment

Value Fitch Services

Employee's Retirement and
Benefit

Money Market Funds $ 1,169,462 Not Rated Not Rated

Certificates ofDeposit 3,269,276 Not Rated Not Rated
Corporate Bonds 6,187,863 BBB+ -AAA Not Rated
Corporate Stocks 25,028,516 A--AA Not Rated
Mortgage Backed Securities 6,877,901 A--AA Not Rated
Municipal Bonds 135,788 AA- Not Rated
U.S. Treasury Obligations 4.836.399 AA+ Not Rated

Total Investments $ 47.505.205

Interest Rate Risk

Money Market Funds
Certificates ofDeposit
Corporate Bonds
Mortgage Backed Securities
Municipal Bonds
U.S. Treasury Obligations

Less Than

1 Year

$ 1,169,462
-0-

-0-

98,787
-0-

211,062

1:5
Years

-0- $

3,269,276
4,023,740
1,096,462

135,788
2,080,816

5-10

Years

-0-

-0-

2,164,123
969,806

-0-

2,215,142

More Than

10 Years

$ -0-

-0-

-0-

4,712,846
-0-

329,379

Total

$ 1,169,462
3,269,276
6,187,863
6,877,901

135,788
4,836,399

At year end, the government had the following investments:

Government Activities

Certificates ofDeposit
Total Government Activities

Investments

Fair

Value

$ L585.279

$ 1.585.279

Credit Risk Ratine

Standard &

Poor's and

Fitch

Moodv's

Investment

Services

Not Rated Not Rated

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Interest Rate Risk

Certificates ofDeposit

Less Than

1 Year

$ -0-

Proprietary Fund Component
Unit - Parking Authority

Money Market Funds
Mutual Funds

Certificates ofDeposit
Total Proprietary Fund Activities

Investments

M
Years

1,585,279

5-10

Years

$ -0-

More Than

10 Years

$ -0-

Total

$ 1,585,279

Credit Risk Rating

Fair

Value

$ 27,307
522,075
371.271

$ 920.653

Standard &

Poor's and

Fitch

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Mood^s

Investment

Services

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Component Unit —Morgantown Public Library

Unrealized

Credit Risk Rating

Standard &

Poor's and
Fair Value Cost Gain/(Loss) Fitch

Mood^s

Investment

Services

Governmental Activity Types
Money Market flmds
Common stock

Corporate bonds
Certificates ofdeposit
Mutual funds

142,569
458,197
195,717
994,468

1.071.869

142,569
293,667
196,058
995,000

1.029.212

$ -0-

164,530

( 341)
( 532)

42.657

$ 2.862.820 $ 2.656.506 $ 206.314

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Concentration of Credit Risk:
Thegovernment's investment policy does notallow foran investment in anyoneissuer
that is in excessof five percentofthe government's total investment. In accordance
with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, it requires
disclosure whenthe investment in anyone issuerequals or exceeds 5%of the total
amount of investments. At year end, thelibrary had no investments in one issuer equal
to or exceeding 5% ofthe total amount of investments.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is anintegral partof these notes.
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Less than 1-5 5-10 More than
Interest Rate Risk one year years years 10 years Total

Money market funds $ 142,569 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 142,569
Corporate bonds 51,539 49,038 95,140 -0- 195,717
Certificates ofdeposit 170,659 823,809 -0- -0- 994,468

At year end, the government had the following investments in fiduciary fimd types:

Credit Risk Ratine

Standard & MoodVs

Unrealized Poor's and Investment
Fair Value Cost Gain/(Loss) Fitch Services

Fiduciaty Types
Money Market fimds $ 1,478 $ 1,478 $ -0- Not Rated Not Rated
Mutual funds 58.034 56.171 1.863 Not Rated Not Rated

$ 59.512 $ 57.649 $ 1.863

Less than 1 -5 5-10 More than
Interest Rate Risk one year years years 10 years Total

Moneymarket fimds $ 1,478 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,478

Component Unit - Morgantown Utility Board

Cost Fair Value

Cash Deposits
Demand deposits $ 1,400,820 $ 1,400,820

Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents
Cash 7,085,058 7,085,058
Investment Agreements

Fixed Income 3,981,855 3,941,013
Equities 1.252.764 1.813.063

Total Cash and Investments $ 13.720.497 $ 14.239.954

Note that the Board held $1,610 in petty cash at June 30,2015.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof thesenotes.
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Interest Rate Risk

The Board's investment policyfollows the Stateof WestVirginia Code§8-13-22a andany
subsequently enacted modifications of this statute concerning the limitsofmaturities on
individual investments.

Credit Risk

The Board has a deposit policy for custodial credit riskbeyond therequirements of the
StateStatue. WestVirginia lawrequires that deposits be insured or be protected by
eligible securities pledged to and deposited either with the Board or a qualified trustee by
the financial institution as a security forrepayment, or by a collateral pool of eligible
securities deposited with a qualified trustee and pledged to secure the repayment of all
public monies deposited in the financial institution whose market value at all times shall
be at leastonehundred fivepercent of the deposits beingsecured.

Creditrisk is the risk that an issueror othercounter partyto an investment will not fulfill
its obligations.

Oualitv Rating Fair Value Percent

AA+ $ 1,875,385 47.6%

AA 378,671 9.6%

AA- 110,414 2.8%

A+ 164,808 4.2%

A 253,678 6.4%

Not Rated 1,158.057 29.5%

Total $ 3,941,013 100.0%

Concentration ofCredit Risk
The Board's investment policyfollows the State of West Virginia Code §8-13-22a and any

subsequently enacted modifications of this statuteconceming the limitson the amount
that may be invested in any one financial institution.

Credit Risk

State lawlimit investments as described inNoteI.D.I. It is thegovernment's policy to
limit its investments as stated in the WestVirginia Code. The government doesnothave
a policy for credit risk in addition to governing statutes.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Concentration ofCredit Risk
The government's investment policydoesnot allow for an investment in anyone issuer

that is in excess of five percent ofthe government's total investment. In accordance with
GASB StatementNo. 40, Deposit and Investment RiskDisclosures, requires disclosure
when the investment in any one issuer equals orexceeds 5% ofthe toti amount of
investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

For deposits, the government could be exposed to risk in the event ofa bank failure where
the government's deposits may not be retumed. The government's policyfor custodial
creditrisk is to require a depository bondas collateral for all investments. At yearend,
the primary government's, component units' and fiduciary fimds' bank balances were
$34,866,829, which were collateralized with a depositorybond.

For Investments, the government could be exposed to risk in the event of the failure of the
counterparty where the government will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outsideparty. The
government has adopted State Code requirements as its policy for custodial credit risk.
At year end, the investment balances were $34,866,829. The entire balance is considered
secured.

A reconciliation ofcash and investments as shown on the Statement ofNet Position of the

government and Statement ofNet Position of the Fiduciary Funds is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,336,421
Investments - collateralized and secured 22.530.408

Total $ 34.866.829

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,336,421
Cash and investments - restricted 11,227,004
Investments 11.303.404

Total $ 34.866.829

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.

56



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

C. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30,2015, was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Beginning

Balance Additions Retirements

Ending

Balance

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $ 1,396,801 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,396,801
Construction in process 73.960 127.918 -0- 201.878

Total nondepreciable capital assets 1.470.761 127.918 -0- 1.598.679

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings 7,428,304 -0- -0- 7,428,304
Infrastructure 8,113,804 -0- -0- 8,113,804
Machinery and equipment 3,719,101 34,834 5,000 3,748,935
Vehicles 6.313.302 119.733 100.887 6.332.148

Total at historical cost 25.574.511 154.567 105.887 25.623.191

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings 2,283,858 169,670 -0- 2,453,528
Infr^tructure 1,596,379 153,002 -0- 1,749,381
Machinery and equipment 2,386,295 80,775 5,000 2,462,070
Vehicles 5.636.891 328.609 100.887 5.864.613

Total accumulated depreciation 11.903.423 732.056 105.887 12.529.592

Total depreciable capital assets, net 13.671.088 f577.4891 -0- 13.093.599

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 15,141,849 S t449,57n $ -0- $ 14.692.278

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Component Unit
Board ofParks and Recreation

Governmental Activities

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $ 86,937 $ -0- $ -0- $ 86,937
Construction in process 158.273 -0- 151.526 6.747

Total nondepreciable capital assets 245.210 -0- 151.526 93.684

Depreciable Capital Assets
Land improvements 979,875 36,975 -0- 1,016,850
Buildings 4,749,130 239,200 -0- 4,988,330
Machinery and equipment 994,687 23,167 58,060 959,794
Vehicles 338.292 -0- -0- 338.292

Total at historical cost 7.061.984 299.342 58.060 7.303.266

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvements 678,810 40,194 -0- 719,004
Buildings 1,977,217 167,572 -0- 2,144,789
Machinery and equipment 685,037 51,210 58,060 678,187
Vehicles 256.453 19.255 -0- 275.708

Total accumulated depreciation 3.597.517 278.231 58.060 3.817.688

Total depreciable capital assets, net 3.464.467 21.111 -0- 3.485.578

Governmental activities capital assets, net % 3,709,677 $ 21.111 % 151.526 $ 3.579.262

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Business-^e Activities
Airport Fund

Beginning Endine

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Governmental Activities

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $ 50,050 $ -0- $ -0- $ 50,050
Construction in process 2.419.053 -0- -0- 2.419.053

Total nondepreciable capital assets 2.469.103 -0- =Qr 2.469.103

Depreciable Capital Assets
Buildings 7,143,113 780,000 -0- 7,923,113
Structures and improvements 30,820,642 -0- -0- 30,820,642
Machinery and equipment 2.307.936 129.037 =Qz 2.436.973

Total at historical cost 40.271.691 909.037 rQ= 41.180.728

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings 3,198,265 201,107 -0- 3,399,372
Structures and improvements 11,734,387 1,293,755 -0- 13,028,142
Machinery and equipment 1.458.585 120.083 =Qi 1.578.668

Total accumulated depreciation 16.391.237 1.614.945 iQr 18.006.182

Total depreciable capital assets, net 23.880.454 f 705.9081 =Qr 23.174.546

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 26,349,557 705.9081 $ % 25,643.649

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Component Unit
Parking Authority

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Governmental Activities

Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $ 1,484,399 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,484,399
Construction in process 8.481 -0- 8.481 -0-

Total nondepreciable capital assets 1.492.880 -0- 8,481 1.484.399

Depreciable Capital Assets
Structures and improvements 9,642,460 99,246 -0- 9,741,706
Leasehold improvements 90,965 -0- -0- 90,965
Machinery and equipment 1.277.748 64.479 -0- 1.342.227

Total at historical cost 11.011.173 163.725 -0- 11.174.898

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Structures and improvements 4,930,540 229,160 -0- 5,159,700
Leasehold improvements 90,965 99,086 -0- 190,051
Machinery and equipment 952.318 62.209 -0- 1.014.527

Total accumulated depreciation 5.973.823 390.455 -0- 6.364.278

Total depreciable capital assets, net 5.037.350 f226.7301 -0- 4.810.620

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 6.530,230 $f226.7301 $ 8.481 $ 6.295.019

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Component Unit
Building Commission

Governmental Activities

Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Bepinninp Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

\

Land $ 1.439.707 $ -0- $ ^ $ 1.439.707

Total nondepreciable capital assets 1.439.707 -0- =Qr 1.439.707

Depreciable Capital Assets
Land improvements 744,473 -0- -0- 744,473
Building 15,742,250 -0- -0- 15,742,250
Machinery and equipment 1.094.319 -0- -0- 1.094.319

Total at historical cost 17.581.042 -0- 17.581.042

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvements 140,192 18,794 -0- 158,986
Building 5,926,212 393,556 -0- 6,319,768
Machinery and equipment 444.311 51.046 -0- 495.357

Total accumulated depreciation 6.510.715 463.396 =0= 6.974.111

Total depreciable capital assets, net 11.070.327 f463.3961 =0; 10.606.931

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 12,510,034 $f463.3961 $ ^ $ 12.046.638

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:

General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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Discretely Presented Component Units
Morgantown Public Libraty

Depreciable Assets
Buildings and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Books and videos

Total at historical cost

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Books and videos

Total accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable capital assets, net

Morgantown UtilityBoard

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

$ 3,250,398 $ $ -0- $ 3,250,398
152,044 -0- -0- 152,044

5.006.816 143.050 -0- 5.149.866

8.409.258 143.050 8.552.308

1,546,299 58,137 -0- 1,604,436
96,016 28,243 -0- 124,259

4.486.549 226.699 -0- 4.713.248

6.128.864 313.079 6.441.943

2.280.394 70.029^ $ ^ $ 2.110.365

was as follows:Current asset activity for the year ended June 30,2015 was as follows:

Retirements &
Beginning Transfers to Ending
Balance Additions Utilitv Plant Balance

CWIP $ 9,111,984 $ 9,293,122 $(8,662,550) $ 9,742,556
Land 1,451,541 206,978 -0- 1,658,519
Intangible plant 376,834 -0- -0- 376,834
Buildings and structures 26,943,342 524,167 ( 18,700) 27,448,809
Water transmission and distribution system 66,106,002 2,732,553 ( 79,387) 68,759,168
Sewer and storm collection system 93,294,642 22,449,292 ( 42,133) 115,701,801
Treatment plant equipment 72,843,607 377,322 ( 31,354) 73,189,576
Office furnitureand equipmentand computer

system 4,572,799 156,607 ( 25,387) 4,704,019
Vehicles and heavy duty equipment 7.618.861 344.280 f 22.3501 7.940.792

Total capital assets 282,319,612 36,084,321 (8,881,861) 309,522,074

Less: Accumulated depreciation ( 94.694.8881 fl2.204.4351 279.503 fl06.619.8201

Total net capital assets S 187,624,724 $ 23.879.886 $f8.602.3581 $ 202.902.254

Depreciation expense charged to operations S -0- $ 8.398.878 $ -0- $ -0-

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
The composition ofinterfund balances as ofJune 30,2015, is as follows:

Receivable Fund

Capital Reserve
General Fimd

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Interfund Transfers:

Payable Fund Amount

Airport Fund $ 607,846
Special Grants 1,000
Woodbum Property 25,000
Parking Authority 9,974
Board ofParks and Recreation 159,397

Component

Unit

Board
Communitv Tax Airport Total of Parks
Development Police OPEB Increment General Capital Access Primarv and
Block Grant Forfeiture Trust Financme Fund Reserve Road Government Recreation Total

Transfers Out:

General Fund $ 50,206 $ -0- $ -0- $ 120,000 $ -0- $ 5,235,000 S -0- $ 5,405,206 $ 1,130,309 $ 6,535,515
Small Cities Block Grant -0- 393 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 393 -0- 393
Ufe and Health -0- -0- 80,775 -0- -0- -0- -0- 80,775 •0- 80,775
Tax Increment Financing

Debt Service -0- -0- -0- 1,191,137 -0- -0- -0- 1,191,137 -0- 1,191,137
BuildingCommission -0- -0- -0- -0- 62,875 9,072 -0- 71,947 -0- 71,947
Coal Severance -0- -0- -0- -0- 92,000 -0- -0- 92,000 -0- 92,000
Capital Reserve -0- -0- -0- 285.683 -0- 1.258.047 1.543.730 -0- 1.543.730

S 50206 $292 S 80.775 S 1^311,137 S 440.558 S 5.244.072 S 1.258.047 S 8.385.188 S 1.130.309 S 9.515.497

Interfund transfers provide appropriations to subsidize the funds to support theprograms
and activities of the government.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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E. Fund Balance Detail

At year-end, the detail of the government's fund balances is as follows:

General Coaj Canital Life and Financine Access Nonmaior
Fund Severance ResCTve Health Debt Service Road Funds Total

Restricted:

Public safety $ 60,605 S -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 60,605
Debt service -0- -0- -0- -0- 2,129,048 -0- -0- 2,129,048
Economicdevelopment -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 144.550 144.550

60.605 -0- -0- -0- 2.129.048 -0- 144.550 2.334.203

Nonspendable:
Inventory 42.789 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 42.789

Assigned:
Streets and transportation -0- 30,886 -0- -0- -0- 464,976 -0- 495,862
Benefit payments -0- -0- -0- 1,605,121 -0- -0- 959,933 2,565,054
Public safety -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 362,349 362,349
Community development -0- -0- 5.211.428 -0- 4)- -0- 76.530 5.287.958

-0- 30,$86 5.211.428 1.605.121 -0- 464.976 1.398.812 8.711J223

Unassigned 6.304.110 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

00
00

6JI87.522

Total fimd balance S 6,407,504 $ 3iL886 S .5.211.428 $ 1-605.121 S 2.129.048 S 464.976 $ 1.526.774 S 17.375.737

F. Long-Term Debt
Lx)ng-tenn liability activity for Governmental Activities for the year ended Jime 30,2015

was as follows:
Amounts Amounts

Beginning
Reductions

Govemmental Activities
Bond Payable

2006A TIE bonds

2007 TIP bonds

2007A TIE bonds
2010 TIE bonds
2014 TIE bonds

Total bonds payable

Other long-term debt
Compensated absences
Obligation under capital lease
Net pension obligation
Accrued other post

employment benefits
Total other long-term debt

Total long-term debt -
Govemmental activities

Balance Additions
Ending

Balance

Due Within Due After

One Year One Year

4,815,000 $
2,725,000
8,615,000
1,285,000

lOr
17.440.000

1,083,868
1,702,282

74,705,188

4.687.000

82.178.338

-0- $ 170,000 $
100,000

-0-

1,285,000
40.000

4,645,000 $ 175,000 $
2,625,000
8,615,000

-0-

5.151.000

-0-

-0-

-0-

5.191.000

5.191.000 1.595.000 21.036.000

-0-

-0-

-0-

243.000

418.000

19,892
-0-

1,860,887

:0^
1.880.779

-0-

184,397
-0-

^

1,103,760
1,517,885

76,566,075

4.687.000

-0-

198,521
-0-

-0-

184.397 83.874.720 198.521

4,470,000
2,625,000
8,615,000

-0-

4.908.000

20.618.000

1,103,760
1,319,364

76,566,075

4.687.000

83.676.199

$ 99.618.338 $ 7.071.779 $ 1.779.397 $ 104.910.720 $ 616.521 $ 104.294.199

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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Componeiit Unit
Board ofPark and Recreation

Commission

Obligation imder capital
lease

Net pension obligation

Total long-term debt
component unit

Component Unit
Morgantown Public Library

Obligation under capital
lease

Net pension obligation

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

$ 824,448 $ -0-
403.188 zQz

$ 227.636 $ zQz

37,064
411.600

45,600
245.926

2,050
244.768

Ending
Balance

$ 778,848
157.262

Amounts

Due Within
Amounts

Due After
One Year One Year

$ 56,544
^

$ 722,304
157.262

$ 936.110 $ 56.544 $ 879.566

35,014
166.832

2,542
^

32,472
166.832

Total long-termliabilities $ 448.664 $ ^ $ 246.818 $ 201.846 $ 2.542 $ 199.304

TIF Bonds

In 2006, the City ofMorgantownissued Tax IncrementFinancing (TIF) revenue bonds to
provide funds to finance the costs ofcertainprivate capital improvements within the
City's designated areas. The bonds do not constitute a general obligation, or pledge of the
full faith and credit of the Cityof Morgantown. Theprincipal and interest on the tax
incrementrevenuebonds are to be repaid solelyby the propertytaxes generatedin
association with increased assessed values ofproperty within the TIF district area.

2006ATIF Bonds

The 2006A TIFbonds were issued in the amount of $6,180,000 to providefinancing for
the ParkingGarageProjectNo. 1. This is a private/public partnership project undertaken
to economically revitalizethe Riverfrontarea. The bonds are payablesolely fi'om the tax
increment property taxes assessed and collected in thedistrict area. Annual principal and
interest on the bonds are expected to require less than 55% ofthe net revenues associated
with the property taxes withinthe district. The bondsmature incrementally with final
maturitydue June 1, 2033. Payments ofprincipaland interest are due annuallyon Jime
1St with varying interest rates. The City has pledged future tax increment revenue to
provide for the repayment of these bonds. The following is a scheduleoffuture debt
retirement based on current financing arrangements:

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2016 $ 175,000 $ 237,785 $ 412,785
2017 185,000 229,910 414,910
2018 195,000 221,030 416,030
2019 200,000 211,670 411,670
2020 210,000 202,070 412,070

2021-2025 1,225,000 848,110 2,073,110
2026-2030 1,550,000 520,690 2,070,690
2031-2033 905.000 114.500 1.019.500

Total $ 4,645,000 $ 2.585.765 $ 7.230.765

2007 TIF Bonds

The 2007 TIF bonds were issued in the amount of$3,000,000 to provide financing for
certain private capital improvements within the City's designated TIP Falling Run district
area. The bonds are payable solely fi"om the property taxes generated in association with
increased assessed values ofproperty within the TIF district area. The bonds do not
constitute a general obligation, or pledge of the faith and credit ofthe City of
Morgantown. Payments ofinterest only are due semiannually with the principal and any
outstanding interest due in 2033. The bonds bear interest at 5.69%. The following is a
schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing arrangements:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2016 $ -0- $ 170,700 $ 170,700
2017 -0- 170,700 170,700
2018 -0- 170,700 170,700
2019 -0- 170,700 170,700
2020 -0- 170,700 170,700

2021 -2025 -0- 853,500 853,500
2026-2030 -0- 853,500 853,500
2031 -2033 2.625.000 512.100 3.137.100

Total $ 2,625,000 $ 3.072.600 $ 5.697.600

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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2007ATIF Bonds

The 2007A TIP bonds were issued subordinate to the 2006 TIP bonds, and were issued to
provide funds to finance the costs of certainprivatecapital improvements with the City's
designated TIPriverfront district area. Proceeds from the bonds provided additional
financingfor the Riverfront Event Center Project No. 1. The bonds are payable solely
from the property taxes generated in associated with the increased assessed values of
property within the TIP district area. The bonds do not constitute a general obligation, or
pledge ofthe full faith and credit of the City ofMorgantown. The bonds bear interest of
8.00%, with interest only payments due quarterly and principal and interest due in June
2033. The following is a schedule offuture debt retirement based on current financing
arrangements:

Piscal Year Ended June 30. Princinal Interest Total

2016 $ -0- $ 689,200 $ 689,200
2017 -0- 689,200 689,200
2018 -0- 689,200 689,200
2019 -0- 689,200 689,200
2020 -0- 689,200 689,200

2021-2025 -0- 3,446,000 3,446,000
2026-2030 -0- 3,446,000 3,446,000
2031-2033 8.615.000 2.067.600 10.682.600

Total $ 8.615.000 $ 12.405.600 $ 21.020.600

2014 TIF Bonds

The 2014 TIP bonds were issued to provide funds to finance the costs of certain private
capital improvements with the City's designated TIP Sunnyside district area and to
refinance the 2010 TIP bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided additional financing
for the Sunnyside district area improvements with the City's designated TIP Sunnyside
district area. The bonds are payable solely from the property taxes generated in
association with the increased assessed values ofproperty within the TIP district area.
The bonds do not constitute a general obligation, or pledge ofthe full faith and credit of
the City ofMorgantown. The bonds bear interest of2.64%. The following is a schedule
of future debt retirement based on current financing arrangements:

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.

68



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE HNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. Princioal Interest Total

2016 $ 243,000 $ 135,986 $ 378,986
2017 294,000 129,571 423,571
2018 301,000 121,809 422,809
2019 309,000 113,863 422,863
2020 318,000 105,705 423,705

2021-2025 1,718,000 398,191 2,116,191
2026-2029 1.968.000 147.998 2.115.998

Total $ 5.151.000 $ 1.153.123 $ 6.304.123

Total debt retirementofall TIP bonds based on currentfinancing arrangements is as
follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. Princioal Interest Total

2016 $ 418,000 $ 1,233,671 $ 1,651,671
2017 479,000 1,219,381 1,698,381
2018 496,000 1,202,739 1,698,739
2019 509,000 1,185,433 1,694,433
2020 528,000 1,167,675 1,695,675

2021-2025 2,943,000 5,545,801 8,488,801
2026-2030 3,518,000 4,968,188 8,486,188
2031-2033 12.145.000 2.694.200 14.839.200

Total $ 21.036,000 $ 19.217.088 $ 40.253.088

Obligation Under Capital Leases
The General Fund of the City ofMorgantown entered into a capital lease to finance the

acquisition of various lighting upgrades and energy efficient equipment and upgrades.
The lease qualified as a capital lease for accountingpurposes and, therefore, has been
recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments as of the date ofinception.
The following is a schedule offuture minimum lease payments required under this
capital lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2015:

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016 $ 89,517
2017 92,711
2018 95,648
2019 98,364
2020 100,897

2021-2025 495.142

972,279
Less: Amount representing interest 188.520

783,759
Less: Current maturities 56.901

Non-current maturities $ 726.858

The General Fundof the Cityof Morgantown entered into a capital lease to finance the
acquisition of various equipment. The leasequalified as a capital leasefor accoimting
purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value ofthe minimum lease
payments as of the date ofinception. The following is a scheduleof futureminimum
lease paymentsrequired under this capital lease and the present value ofthe net minimum
lease payments at June 30,2015:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016 $ 153,603
2017 153,603
2018 153,603
2019 153,603
2020 153.603

768,015
Less: Amount representing interest 33.889

734,126
Less: Current maturities 141.620

Non-current maturities

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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The following is a schedule of future minimum leasepayments required underall
governmental fund capital leases and the present value ofthe net minimum lease
payments at June 30,2015:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016 $ 243,120
2017 246,314
2018 249,251
2019 251,967
2020 254,500

2021-2025 495.142

1,740,294
Less: Amoimt representing interest 222.409

1,517,885
Less: Current maturities 198.521

Non-current maturities $ 1.319.364

Component Unit - Board of Parks and Recreation Commission

The Board of Parks and RecreationCommission of the City ofMorgantown entered into a
capital lease to finance the acquisition of lighting upgrades, boiler upgradesand roustan
ice plant at the City's ice rink. The lease qualified as a capital lease for accounting
purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the minimum lease
payments as ofthe date of inception. The following is a schedule offuture minimum
lease payments required under this capital lease and the present value of the net minimum
lease payments at June 30,2015:

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016 $ 88,957
2017 92,130
2018 95,049
2019 97,748
2020 100,266

2021-2025 492.042

966,192
Less: Amount representing interest 187.344

778,848
Less: Current maturities 56.544

Non-current maturities $ 722.304

Component Unit - Morgantown Public Library

The Morgantown Public Library entered into a capital lease to finance the acquisition of
various lighting upgrades and energy efficient equipment and upgrades. The lease
qualified as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at
die present value of the minimum lease payments as ofthe date of inception. The
following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments required under this capital
lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30,2014:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016 $ 3,999
2017 4,142
2018 4,273
2019 4,395
2020 4,508

2021 -2025 22.120

43,437
Less: Amount representing interest 8.423

35,014
Less: Current maturities 2.542

Non-current maturities $ 32.472

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Long-term liability activity for Business-TypeActivities Unit for the year ended June 30,
2015 was as follows:

Amounts Amounts

Besinnine Ending Due Within Due After

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year One Year

Business-Type Activities
Obligation Under Capital Lease $ 383,748 $ -0- $ 21,225 $ 362,523 $ 26,319 $ 336,204

Discretely Presented Component
Unit

Obligation Under Capital Lease 185.094 rOr 10.237 174.857 12.695 162.162

Total Capital Lease 568.842 =0r 31.462 537.380 39.014 498.366

Bonds Payable
2012 Municipal Building Lease

Revenue Refunding Bonds 2,965,000 -0- 555,000 2,410,000 565,000 1,845,000
2013A Municipal Building Lease

Revenue Refunding Bonds 3,510,000 -0- 230,000 3,280,000 235,000 3,045,000
2012 Parking System Refunding

Revenue Bonds 2.994.537 -0- 367.808 2.626.729 377.060 2.249.669

Total Bonds Payable 9.469.537 iQz 1.152.808 8.316.729 1.177.060 7.139.669

Total Discretely Presented Component
Units $ 10.038,379 $ ^ $ 1.184.270 $ 8.854.109 $ 1.216.074 $ 7.638.035

2012Municipal Building Lease Revenue Refunding Bond
This issue was authorized to refinance the 2003 Municipal Building Lease Revenue Refunding

Bonds. The bonds vYere issued bearing interest of2.00%-2.25% payable semiannually on the first
day ofJanuary and the first day ofJuly ofeach year.

The following is a schedule offuture debt retirement based on current financing arrangements:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 565,000 $ 49,850 $ 614,850
2017 585,000 38,550 623,550
2018 600,000 26,850 626,850
2019 660.000 14.850 674.850

Total $ 2.410.000 $ 130.000 $ 2.540.100

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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The 2012bondsare secured by the leaserentals derived from the leaseof the publicsafetyand
parkingbuildingto the City pursuant to the lease, and from funds on deposit in the reserve
account.

As required by the 2012 bond ordinance, a sinking fund has been established with WesBanco Trust
Investment Services. Monies in the sinking fund are to be used only for the purposes ofpaying
principal ofand interest on the bonds. Payments are required to be made into the sinking fimd to
pay interestwhichwill mature and becomedue on the next succeedinginterestpaymentdate.
The balance in the sinking fund account with the Wesbanco Trust Investment Services at June 30,
2015 was $302,740.

2013A Municipal Building Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds
This issuewasauthorized to refinance the $4,500,000, 2008A Municipal Building Lease Revenue

Bonds. The bondswere issued bearing interest of 1.00%- 2.75% payablesemiannually on the
first day ofApril and the first day ofOctoberofeach year.

The following is a schedule of future debtretirement basedon current financing arrangements:

Fiscal Year Ended Jime 30. Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 235,000 $ 85,385 $ 318,298
2017 235,000 76,273 320,385
2018 240,000 71,283 316,273
2019 245,000 60,825 316,283
2020 255,000 60,825 315,825

2021-2025 1,365,000 217,300 1,582,300
2026-2028 705.000 27.681 1.049.750

Total $ 3.280.000 $ 599.572 $ 4.219.114

The 2013A bonds are secured by the leaserentals derived from the leaseofthe station to the City
pursuant to the lease, and from funds on deposit in the reserve accoxmt.

As required by the 2013A bond ordinance, a sinking fimd has been established. Monies in the
sinkingfimd are to be used only for the purposesofpayingprincipalofand intereston the bonds.
Payments are required to be made into the sinkingfimd to pay interest and principalwhich will
mature and becomedue on the next succeeding paymentdate. The balance in the sinkingfimd
account at June 30, 2015 was $225,524.

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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2012 Parking System Refunding Revenue Bonds
This issue was authorized to refinance the 2002 Parking Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued

bearing interestof2.50% with principaland interestpayable semiannually on the first day ofJune
and the first day ofDecemberofeach year in semiannualpaymentsof$220,193.

The following is a scheduleof future debt retirement based on currentfinancing arrangements:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. Princioal Interest Total

2016 $ 377,060 $ 63,327 $ 440,387
2017 386,546 53,841 440,387
2018 396,270 44,117 440,387
2019 406,239 34,148 440,387
2020 416,458 23,929 440,387

2021-2022 644.156 16.167 660.323

Total $ 2.626.729 $ 235.529 $ 2.862.258

The 2012 bonds are secured by the revenues ofthe Parking Authorityand a statutory mortgage lien
on the Parking Authority system.

Discretely Presented Component Unit
Morganton Utility Board

1995 Bonds Payable
The Board issued $1,601,477 in a combined water and sewer revenuebond on April 22, 1995.

This bond matures quarterly starting March 1,1996, until December 1,2015. This bond b^s
an interest rate of2% and a 1%administration fee per annum and is payablequarterlyon March
1, June 1, September 1, and December 1 ofeach year. Annualized payments of$97,351 are
required.

2000A Bonds Payable
The Board issued $7,842,000 in a combinedwaterworksand seweragesystem revenue bonds on

February 8,2000, for the construction ofcertain extensions, additions, betterments and
improvements to the sewerage system for the Cheat Lake customers. The bonds mature
quarterlyon March 1, June 1, September1, and December 1 ofeachyear commencingMarch 1,
2002. The bonds mature on March 1,2026. The bonds bear no interest and were issued to the
West Virginia Division ofEnvironmental Protection. The bonds carry a 0.5% administrative fee
per annum and are payable quarterly. Annualized payments of$323,384 are required.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of thesenotes.
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2000B Bonds Payable
The Board issued $2,488,000 in a combined waterworks and sewerage system revenue bonds on

February 8,2000, for the construction of certain extensions, additions, betterments and
improvements to the sewerage system for the Cheat Lake customers. The bonds mature
quarterlyon March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1 of each year commencingMarch 1,
2002. The bonds mature on December 31, 2039. The bonds bear no interest and were issued to
the West VirginiaInfrastructure and Jobs Development Council. Annualized paymentsof
$65,476 are required.

2001A Bonds Payable
The Board issued $3,812,470 in a combined waterworks and sewerage system revenue bonds on

February 8,2001, for the acquisition and construction ofextensions, additions, betterments and
improvements ofthe waterworks portion ofthe existing public combined waterworks and
sewerage system. The bonds mature quarterly on March 1, June 1, September 1, and
December 1 ofeach year commencingJxme 1,2002. The bonds bear interest at a rate of 3% per
annum and will be paid quarterly on March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1 ofeach
year. The bonds were issued to the West Virginia Development Authority and mature
December 1, 2015. Annualized payments of$339,402 are required.

2006A Bonds Payable
The Board issuedbonds of$6,410,000 in a combinedwaterworks and sewerage systemrevenue

bonds on June 30,2006, for the acquisition and construction of the extension, additions,
betterments and improvements ofthe sewerage portion of the existingpublic combined
waterworks and sewerage system. The bonds bear interest rates of3% with a 20 year term paid
quarterly on March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1. Aimualized payments of$424,240
are required.

2007 Bonds Payable
The Board issued bonds of $8,500,000 in a combined utility system revenue bonds on June 30,

2007, for the acquisition and construction of the extension, additions, betterments and
improvements of the storm water portion of the existing public combined utility system. The
bonds bear interest rates of3% with a 20 year term paid quarterlyon March 1, Jime 1,
September 1, and December 1. Aimualized paymentsof$579,232 are required.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart ofthese notes.
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2010A Bonds Payable
The Board issued on January 28,2010, combined utility system revenue bonds, series 201OA

(Direct Payment Build America Bonds), for the acquisition and construction ofthe extension,
additions, betterments and improvements of the waterworks portion of the existing public
combined utility system in the original aggregate principal amount of$37,950,000. The bonds
are 30 year and bear an annual interest rate of5% - 6.375%. Interest is paid semi-annually on
June 1 and December 1 and principal payments annually beginning December 1,2019.
Annualized payments of$2,280,000 are required.

2010C Bonds Payable
The Board issued on January 28,2010 combined utility system revenue bonds, series 201OC

(West Virginia SRF Program) for the acquisition and construction ofthe extension, additions,
betterments and improvements of the sewerageportion of the existing public combined utility
system in the original aggregate principal amount of$15,380,277. The bonds bear a 2% interest
rate and a 1% administrative fee paid quarterly on March 1, June 1, September 1 and
December 1. Aimualized payments of$1,017,898 are required.

2010D Bonds Payable
The Board issued on January 28, 2010 combined utility system revenue bonds, series 2010D

(West Virginia DWTRF Program), for the acquisition and construction ofthe extension,
additions, betterments and improvements ofthe waterworks portion of the existing public
combined utility system in the original aggregate principal amount $9,317,286. The bonds bear
a 2% interest rate paid quarterly on March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1. Annualized
payments of$566,381 are required.

2010E Bonds Payable
The Board issued on January 28,2010 combined utility system revenue bonds, series 2010E

(West Virginia DWTRF Program/ARRA) for the acquisition and construction of the extension,
additions, betterments, and improvements ofthe waterworks portion ofthe existing public
combined utility system, in the original aggregate principal amount of $100,000. The bonds
bear a 2% interest rate paid quarterly on March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1.
Annualized payments of$6,079 are required.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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2010F Bonds Payable
The Board issued on January 28,2010 combinedutility system revenue bonds, series 201OF

(Bank Qualified) in the originalaggregate principalamountof$7,250,000 for the acquisition
and construction of the extension, additions, betterments and improvements of the waterworks
portion ofthe existing public combined utility system. The bonds bear interest rates of 1.5% to
3.2% with a 5.932 year term. Interest is paid semi-annuallyon June 1 and December 1 and
principalpayments annuallyon December 1. Annualized paymentsof$1,155,252 are required.

2012A Bonds Payable
The Board issued on August 24,2012 $570,000combinedutility systemrevenuebonds for

construction of the extension, additions, betterments and improvements ofthe waterworks
portion ofthe existingpublic combinedwaterworks and seweragesystem. The construction will
be completed fall 2013. The bondsbear an interest rate of .5% and a .5% administrative fee per
annum and is payablequarterlyon March 1, June 1, September1, and December 1 ofeach year,
beginningJune 1, 2014 until March 1,2044. Annualized paymentsof$21,945 plus annual
payments of$2,047 until a reserve requirement of$20,472 is met.

2012C Bonds Payable
The Board issued on September28,2012 $2,325,000 combined utility systemrevenuebonds for

construction of the extension, additions, betterments and improvements ofthe storm water
portion ofthe existing public combined utility system. The bonds bear an interest rate of2.25%
- 4.25%. Interestis payablesemi-annually on April 1 and October 1beginningApril 2013 and
principal is paid annuallyon October 1 until October2032. Annual payments of$163,920are
required.

2013ABonds Payable
The Board issued on August 22,2013 $4,605,260 combined utilitysystem revenue bonds for the

assumption and replacement of the Canyon Public Service District Series 2008A bonds. The
bonds bear an interest rate of 0%. Principal is paid quarterly until June 2048.

2014B Bonds Payable
The Board issued on July 23,2014 $505,421 combined utility systemrevenuebonds for

constructionofthe extension, additions,betterments and improvementsof the storm water
portion ofthe existing public combined utility system. The bonds bear an interest rate of3.16%.
Principal and interest is paid monthly.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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2015A Bonds Payable
the Board issued on March 31,2015 $137,568 original principal combined utility system revenue

bonds for the assumption and replacement of the Scotts Run Public Service District Series
1991Abonds. The bonds bear an interest rate of7.75%. Principal and interest is paid annually
until October 2031.

2015B Bonds Payable
The Board issued on March 31,2015 $4,586 original principal combined utility system revenue

bonds for the assumption and replacement of the Scotts Run Public Service District Series
199IB bonds. The bonds bear an interest rate of0%. Principal is paid annuallyuntil October
2031.

2015C Bonds Payable
The Board issued on march 31,2015 $8,111,813 original principal combined utility system

revenue bonds for the assumption and replacement of the Scotts Run Public Service District
Series 2003A bonds. The bonds bear an interest rate of 0% and .5% administrative fee.

Principal and administrative fee is paid quarterly until September 2043.

2015D Bonds Payable
The Board issued on March 31,2015 $1,688,394original principal combinedutility system

revenue bonds for the assumption and replacement of the Scotts Run Public Service District
Series 2009A bonds. The bonds bear an interest rate of 0% and .5% administrative fee.
Principal and administrative fee is paid quarterly until December 2049.

2015E Bonds Payable
The Board issued on June 11,2015 $662,300 combined utility system revenue bonds for

construction of the extension, additions, betterments and improvements of the storm water
portion of the existing public combined utility system. The bonds bear an interest rate of0%
and .5% administrative fee. Principal and administrative fee is paid quarterlyuntil June 2055.

The accompanying independentauditor'sreport is an integral part of these notes.
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Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30,2015 was as follows:

Beginning Payments Proceeds Ending Current Portion

Morgantown 1995 $ 143,504 $( 95,191) $ -0- $ 48,313 $ 48,313
Morgantown 2000A 3,799,712 ( 323,380) -0- 3,476,332 323,384
Morgantown 2000B 1,669,550 ( 65,476) -0- 1,604,074 65,476
Morgantown 2001A 496,002 ( 328,191) -0- 167,811 167,811
Morgantown 2006A 4,747,830 ( 296,924) -0- 4,450,906 302,907
Morgantown 2007A 6,878,555 ( 400,458) -0- 6,478,097 408,617
Morgantown 201OA 37,950,000 -0- -0- 37,950,000 -0-
Morgantown 20 IOC 14,265,788 ( 654,508) -0- 13,611,280 667,696
Morgantown 2010D 8,476,646 ( 396,498) 165,518 8,245,666 404,489
Morgantown 2010E 92,754 ( 4,256) -0- 88,498 4,341
Morgantown 201OF 5,285,000 (1,005,000) -0- 4,280,000 1,030,000
Morgantown 2012A 565,593 ( 17,678) -0- 547,915 17,678
Morgantown 2012C 2,240,000 ( 95,000) -0- 2,145,000 90,000
Morgantown 2013A 4,473,680 ( 131,580) -0- 4,342,100 131,580
Morgantown 2014B -0- ( 14,965) 505,421 490,456 18,922
Morgantown 2015A -0- -0- 104,584 104,584 3,170
Morgantown 2015B -0- -0- 1,999 1,999 118
Morgantown 2015C -0- ( 160,101) 6,190,572 6,030,471 213,468
Morgantown 2015D -0- ( 33,108) 1,555,962 1,522,854 44,144
Morgantown 2015E -0- -0- 25.500 25.500 4.219

Total $ 91.084.614 $(4,022.3141 $ 8.549.556 $ 95.611.856 $ 3.946.333

Changes in other long-term obligations during the year endedJune 30,2015 were as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Net pension liability $ 5,402,449 $ -0- $(167,144) $ 5,235,305 $ -0-
Note payable ^ 14.447 ^ 14.447

Total $ 5.402.449 $ 14.447 $(167.1441 $ 5.249.752 $ ^

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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Obligations Under Capital Lease

The Airport Authority of the City ofMorgantown entered into a capital lease to finance the
acquisition of lighting upgrades and HVAC upgrades. The lease qualified as a capital lease for the
accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the minimum lease
payments as of the date of inception. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease
payments required under the capital lease and the present value of the net minimum lease payments
at Jime30, 2015.

Fiscal Year Ending Jxrne 30,

2016 $ 41,406
2017 42,883
2018 44,241
2019 45,498
2020 46,670

2021-2025 229.025

449,723
Less: Amoimt representing interest 87.200

362,523
Less: Current maturities 26.319

Non-current maturities $ 336.204

The Parking Authority of the City ofMorgantown entered into a capital lease to finance the
acquisitionoflighting upgrades. The lease qualified as a capital lease for accountingpurposes and,
therefore, has been recorded at the present value ofthe minimum lease payments as ofthe date of
inception. The following is a schedule offuture minimum lease payments required imder the
capital lease and the present value ofthe net minimum lease payments at June 30,2015:

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Fiscal Year Ending June 30.

2016 $ 19,971
2017 20,684
2018 21,339
2019 21,945
2020 22,510

2021-2025 110.466

216,915
Less: Amount representing interest 42.058

174,857
Less: Current maturities 12.695

Non-current maturities $ 162.162

G. Benefits Funded by the State ofWest Virginia
For the year ended June 30,2015, the State ofWest Virginiacontributed estimated
payments on behalfof the governments public safety employees as follows:

Plan Amount

Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund $ 578,714
Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund 451.492

Total $ 1.030.206

State contributions are funded by allocations ofthe State's insurancepremiumtax.

H. Prior Period Adjustment
The following fund balances of the primary government required restatement as of the
beginning of the year as follows:

Life and Health Fund

Fund balance as previously stated $ 1,284,459

Overstatement of accounts receivable ( 1.8001

Fund balance as restated $ 1.282.659

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integralpart of these notes.
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Airport Fund
Net position as previously stated

Restatement for adoption of GASB 68

Net position as restated

Governmental Activities

Net position as previously stated

Restatement for adoption of GASB 68

Net position as restated

COMPONENT UNITS

Board of Parks and Recreation Commission

Fund balance as previously stated

Understatement ofcapital assets

Fimd balance as restated

Parking Authority
Net position as previously stated

Restatement for adoption of GASB 68

Net position as restated

Morgantown Public Library
Net position as previously stated

Understatement ofnet pension liability -
adoption of GASB 68

Net position as restated

$ 25,585,335

( 1.176.975)

$ 24.408.360

$ (10,061,263)

(57.604.796)

$ (67.666.059)

$ (222,716)

83.319

$ (139.397)

$ 4,543,543

( 765.175)

$ 3.778.368

$ 5,558,148

( 323.831)

$ 5.234.317

The accompanying independent auditor'sreport is an integral part of these notes.
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IV. Other Information

A. Risk Management
The government is exposed tovarious risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and

destruction ofassets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the
government cames insurance with Commercial Insurance Company for umbrella
(general liability) insurance for these various risks.

Workers' Compensation Fimd (WCF): Private insurance companies could begin to offer
workers compensation coverage to government employers beginning July1,2010.
Workers compensation coverage is provided for thisentity byTravelers Insurance.

Liabilitiesare reported when it is probable a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated.

B. Contingent Liabilities
Thegovernment is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although theoutcome of these
lawsuits is notpresently deteiminable, it is theopinion of thegovernment's counsel that
resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial condition of
the government.

V. Employee Retirement System and Plans

Plan Descriptions. Contribution Information
The City ofMorgantown, West Virginia participates inthree single employer, public employee

retirement systems. Assets are held separately and may beused only for thepayment ofbenefits
to the membersofthe respectiveplans, as follows:

The Policemen's Pension and ReliefFund (PPRF) provides retirement benefits for substantially
all full-time police employees. Unless otherwiseindicated, PPRF informationin this Note is
provided as of the latestactuarial valuation, July 1,2015.

The Firemen's Pension and ReliefFund (FPRF) provides retirement benefits for substantially
all full-time fire employees. Unless otherwise indicated, FPRFinformation in this Note is
providedas the latest actuarial valuation, July 1,2015.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part ofthese notes.
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The Employees Pension and ReliefFund (ERF) provides retirement benefits for substantially
all full-time permanent employees not covered by other plans. Unless otherwise indicated,
ERF information in this Note is provided as of the latest actuarial valuation, July 1,2015.

Actuarial valuations are required to be performed once every three years per state statute.
However, the actuarial valuations can be performed in shorter intervals at the discretion of the
PPRF, FPRF and ERF's board.

These plans are defined benefit plans. The following is a summary of funding policies,
contribution methods and benefit provisions.

Governingauthority

Detemiination ofcontribution

requirements

Employer

Plan members

Period Required to Vest

Post-retirement Benefit

Provisions fon

Diability benefits
Death benefits

PPRF

City Council Ordinance

Actuarially determined

FPRF

City Council Ordinance

Actuariallydetermined

Contribute annually an amountwhich, together with contributions
fiom the membersand the allocableportionof the state premium
tax fund, will be sufficient to meet the normal cost ofthe fund
and amortize any unfimdedactuarial accrued liability.
Municipalities may utilize an alternative contribution method
which allows the municipalityto contribute no less than 107%
of the prior years contributionprovided the actuary certifies
in writing that the fimd will be solvent over the next IS years
under this method. In no event can the employer contribution
be less than the normal cost as determined by the actuary.

7.00% for pre January 2010
hires

9.5% for post January
2010 hires

20 years of service but no later than the date the participant
reaches 65.

Cost of living adjustment after two years ofretirement
Adjustment calculated on the first SI 5,000 ofthe total annual
benefit multiplied by the Consumer Price Index (not to exceed
4%). Cost of Living adjustment calculated thereafter on a
cumulative basis.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

ERF

City Council Ordinance

Actuarially determined

Contribute annually an amount sufficient to meet
the normal cost of the fimd and amortize the

actuarial deficit over a period of22 years.

6.00% ofcovered payroll

The latter of the date the participant attains
age 60 and 10 years ofservice credit, or attains
age 55 and age plus years ofService Credit
total 85.

Annual Cost of Livingadjustments is the lesser
of 3% or the annual consumer price index
multipliedby 50%; provided that the
mum'cipality's contribution for the year is less
than 6% of the participatingpayroll.

Yes

Yes

The accompanying independent auditor's reportis an integral part of thesenotes.
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Annual Requited Conttibutions and Significant Actuarial Assumptions
Actuarial assumptions and other information used to determine the annual required contributions

(ARC) are as follows:

Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Amortization Period

Actuarial asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate ofreturn

Projected salary increases
Post retirement benefit increases

Inflation

Cost of living adjustments

Policemen's and Firemen's

Pension & Relief Fund

7/1/2015

Projected Unit Credit
Level % Open
27 year (level percentage)

Market Value

5%

5%

None

4%

3%

Employees Pension
and Relief Fund

7/1/2015

Aggregate entry age

Market Value

7.0%

4.0%

None

3%

None

Current year annual pension costs for the PPRF, FPRF and ERF are shown in the trend
information. A summary schedule ofprior employer contributions is presented in the required
supplementary information(note 11). The annual required contributions were madeby the
PPRF, FPRF and ERF fimd plans.

Reserves

There are no assets legally reservedfor purposesother than the paymentof plan membersbenefits
for either plan. The plans held no investments (other than U.S. government and U.S.
government guaranteed obligations) whosemarket value exceeds 10percentor more ofnet
assets available for benefits.

Deferred Compensation Plan
The government offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordancewith

Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all full-time government employees
at their option, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The
deferred compensation is not available to participants rmtil termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property
and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amoimts, property
or rights are held for the exclusive benefit ofthe participants and their beneficiaries.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Other Postemployment Benefits
Upon termination from city service, an employee working for the City ofMorgantown on June

15,1993, who subsequently retires from fiie city will be eligible to convert sick leave days in
excess ofninety (90) days but less than one hundred and eighty one (181) days as ofJime 15,
1993, to health insurance upon his/her day ofretirement at the rate ofthree (3) sick days for one
(1) month of single group medical insurance as carried by the city, or at the rate of four (4) sick
days for one (1) month offamily group medical insurance as carried by the city. This benefit
requires that employees with such qualifjdng sick days put them into escrow for this benefit and
forgo collecting 1/3 day pay for each day ofsick leave. By placing these days in escrow, city
employees as of the date of this amendment will have their sick day balance reduced to 90 days.
All employees hired subsequent to June 15, 1993, are not granted this option.

Accrued Other Post Employmetit Benefits
Plan description/contribution information
The City maintains a single employer health insurance plan that covers substantially all eligible

full-time employees as well as certain current and future retirees of the system. The accrued
other post employmentbenefits (OPEB) provides retirement health insurance benefits for
substantially all foil-time employees.

Pension Trust Funds Financial Statements

Assets

Cash

Investments

Receivables:

Contributions

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Net position
Held in trust

Policemen's

Pension

Firemen's

Pension

and Relief and Relief

Emplovee's
Retirement

and Benefit Total

$ 15,047 $ 9,958 $ 1,696 $ 26,701
14,419,360 11,500,905 47,505,205 73,425,470

-0- -0- 135.830 135.830

14.434.407 11.510.863 47.642.731 73.588.001

599 5.938 6.537

-0- 599 5.938 6.537

$ 14.434.407 $ 11.510.264 $ 47.636.793 $ 73.581.464

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Policemen's Firemen's Employee's
Pension Pension Retirement

and Relief and Relief and Benefit Total

Additions

Contributions:

Employer $ 720,778 $ 618,813 $ 1,879,379 $ 3,218,970
Employee 343,444 191,330 725,508 1,260,282
Insurance premium tax allocation 578,714 451,492 -0- 1,030,206
Other zOi 5.261 5.261

Total contributions 1.642.936 1.261.635 2.610.148 5.514.719

Investment Income:

Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of investments

Gain (loss) on sale ofinvestments
Interest and dividends

Total investment income

Miscellaneous

Total additions

Deductions

594,099)
748,159
286.790

440.850

208

2.083.994

( 481,733)
608,450
229.062

355.779

m

1.617.580

( 418,397)
1,561,063

982.501

2.125.167

-Oz

4.735.315

( 1,494,229)
2,917,672
1.498.353

2.921.796

374

8.436.889

General and administrative 114,019 93,538 174,281 381,838
Contribution refimds 33,200 -0- 170,164 203,364
Benefit payments 1.974.707 1.496.332 2.650.584 6.121.623

Total deductions 2.121.926 1.589.870 2.995.029 6.706.825

Net increase (decrease) ( 37,932) 27,710 1,740,286 1,730,064
Net position - beginning ofyear 14.472.339 11.482.554 45.896.507 71.851.400

Net position - end ofyear $ 14.434.407 $ 11.510.264 $ 47.636.793 $ 73.581.464

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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V.B.l Plan Descriptions Contribution Information and Funding Policies

Public Employees Retirement system (PERS)
The City's contributions to the West Virginia Public Employees RetirementSystemfor the year

ended June 30,2015 is as follows:

Total wages
Covered wages
Employer share 14.00%
Employee share 4.50%

Component Unit
Board ofParks and

Recreation Commission

1,259,818
557,943

78,112
25,108

Component Unit
Morgantown Public Library

$ 805,185
$ 593,250
$ 83,055
$ 26,743

The following is a summary ofeligibility factors, contribution methods, and benefit provisions:

Public Emplovees' Retirement Svstem (PERS)

Eligibility to participate

Authority establishing contribution
obligations and benefit provisions

Plan member's contribution rate

City's contribution rate

Period required to vest

Benefits and eligibility for
distribution

All Municipal full-time employees, except those
covered by other pension plans

State Statute

4.50%

14.00%

Five Years

A member who has attained age 60 and has eamed
5 years or more of contributing service or age 55
ifthe sum ofhis/her age plus years of credited
service is equal to or greater than 80. The final
average salary (three highest consecutive years in
the last 15) times the years of service times 2%
equals the annual retirement benefit.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Deferred retirement portion No

Provisions for:

Cost of living No
Death benefits Yes

PERS issues a publicly available financial report thatincludes financial statements and required
supplementary information. Thatinformation maybe obtained bywriting to thePublic
Employees Retirement System, 4101 MacCorkle Ave S.E., Charleston, WV 25304.

The City ofMorgantown elected tobecome aparticipating employer under the West Virginia
Employees Retirement System (PERS plan).

General Information About the Plan

The plan is a defined benefit plan and provides pensions for all participating employees ofthe
City. ThePERS planis a statewide, cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit retirement
plan forpublic employees established onJuly1,1961. All employees of the State ofWest
Virginia and any political subdivision whose governing body elects toparticipate are required
(with certain exceptions) tobecome members. The PERS Plan is managed bya Board of
Trustees, which consists of the Governor, State Auditor, State Treasurer, andSecretary of the
Department ofAdministration together with thefollowing gubernatorial appointments thatare
subject to the advice and consent of the State Senate: for residents of the State who are not
participants in the retirement plans, one State and onenon-state employee participant in PERS,
andoneparticipant each fi-om TRS, SPDDRS, SPRS, DSRS, EMSRS, MPFRS, and TDCRS.

Participants in thePERS Planwho retire at age 60withat least five years of credited service or at
least age 55 with their age plus service equal to 80or greater are entitled to a retirement benefit,
payable monthly for life, equal to 2% of average salary multiplied byyears of service. Average
salary is the average of the three consecutive highest annual earnings out of thelast fifteen years
of earmngs. Terminated members with at least five years of contributory service who donot
withdraw their accumulated contributions may elect to receive their benefits at age 62. The
PERS Plan also provides death and disability benefits.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is anintegral partof these notes.
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Employees covered by benefit terms are all active employees.

Contribution rates for the PBRS Plan are subject to Chapter 5, Article 10 ofthe West Virginia
State Code. For the year ended June 30,2014, active members contributed 4.5 percent of their
salary, and employers contributed 14.5 percent of the member's compensation into the plan. For
the year ended June 30,2015, active members contributed 4.5 percent oftheir salary, and
employers contributed 14.0 percent of the member's compensation into the plan.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows ofResources and
DeferredInflows ofResources Related to Pensions

At June 30,2015 the City's component units reported a liability of$1,315,320 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
June 30, 2014 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as ofJuly 1,2013 and rolled forward to June 30, 2014
using the actuarial assumption and methods described in the appropriate section of the notes.
The City's component unit portion ofthe net pension liability was based on a projection of the
City's long-term share ofcontributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions
ofall participating public employers actuarially determined.

At Jime 30,2014, the City's component units reported the following proportions and
increases/decreases fi:om its proportion measured as ofJune 30, 2013:

Amount for proportionate share ofnet pension liability $ 1,315,320
Percentage for proportionate share ofnet pension liability 0.356394%
Increase (decrease) % fi*om prior proportion measured -0.012279%

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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For the year ended June 30,2015, the City's component units recognized pension expense on their
government wide financial statements. At June 30,2015, the City reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources ofResources

Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments $ -0- $ 1,013,573

Changes in proportion and differences between
government contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 59,276 -0-

Govemment contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 487.303 lO;

S 546.579 $ 1.013.573

The amountreported as deferred outflowsofresources related to pensionsresulting fi*om
government contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognizedas a reduction
of the net pensionliability in the year endedJune 30, 2016. Otheramounts reportedas deferred
outflows ofresources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30.

2016 $ (105,254)
2017 (105,254)
2018 (105,254)
2019 (105,254)
2020 ri05.254)

$ r526.270J

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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ActuarialAssumptions
Thetotal pension liability in theJune30,2014 actuarial valuation wasdetermined usingthe

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods includedin the measurement:

Inflation: 2.2 percent
Salaryincreases: 4.25 - 6.0 percent, includinginflation
Investment rate ofreturn: 7.5 percent,net ofpension plan investmentexpenses,

including inflation.

Mortality rates for non-disabled participants werebased on the 1983GroupAnnuityMortality
Table for males and the 1971 GroupAnnuity Table for females, as appropriate. Mortalityrates
for disabledparticipants were based on the 1983 Group Annuity MortalityTable for Males and
Revenue Ruling 96-7 for Females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,2013 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1,2013 to June 30,2014.

The long-term expected rate ofreturn on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges ofexpected future real rates ofreturn
(expected returns, net ofpension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate ofretum
by wei^ting the expected future real rates ofretum by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Rates summarized in the following table include the inflation
component and were used for the following defined benefit plan:

Target Long-Term Exnected

Asset Class Allocation Rate ofRetum

US Equity (Russell 3000) 27.50% 7.67%

Intemationd Equity (ACWI ex US) 27.50% 8.50%

Fixes Income 15.00% 2.90%

High Yield 0.00% 4.80%

TPS 0.00% 2.90%

Real Estate 10.00% 6.80%

Private Equity 10.00% 9.90%

Hedge Funds 10.00% 5.00%

CPA 0.00% 2.20%

Total 100.00%

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection ofcash
flows used to determine the discount rate assuming that employer contributions will continue to
follow the current fiinding policies. Based on those assximptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments ofactive
and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate ofreturn on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods ofprojected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity ofthe City's Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The following presents the City's component unit proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 7.50 percent as well as what the City's proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate fiiat is 1
percentage point lower (6.50 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8.50 percent) than the
current rate.

(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%)

City's proportionate share
of the net pension liability $ 3,715,684 $ 1,315,320 $(730,830)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows, andDeferred Inflows
Related to Pensions

Morgantown Utility Board
At fiscal year-end, the Board reported the following liability for its proportionate share of the net

pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as ofJune 30,2015, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as ofJuly 1,2015 using the actuarial assumptions and methods described in the
appropriate section of this note. The Board's proportion of the net pension liability was based on
a calculation ofBoard employer contributions to total employer contributions to the Plan in
fiscal year ended 2015. At June 30,2015, the government's reported the following proportions:

Pension Plan

Amount for proportionate share ofnet pension liability $ 5,235,305

Percentage for proportionate share ofnet pension liability 57.33%

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

For the year ended June 30,2015, the Board recognized the following pension expense:

Pension Plan

Pension expense $ 845.861

The Board reported deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual
experience

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Totals

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

$ -0- $ 491,307

555.799

$ 555.799

-0-

$ 491.307

Amounts reported as deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30.

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

Thereafter

Total

$ 49,473
49,473
49.473
49.474

(89,478)
(43.9231

$ 64.492

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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NOTES TO THE HNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Current

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

6.00% 7.00% 8.00%

Proportionate share of
net pension liability $ 8,979,274 $ 5,235,305 $ 2,057,207

Pension Plan FiduciaryNet Position
Detailed information aboutthe pensionplan's fiduciary net positionis available in the separately

issued financial report available at the Consolidated Public Retirement Board's website at
www.wvrewtirement.com. That information can also be obtained by writing to the West
Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board, 4101 MacCorkle Avenue SE, Charleston, WV
25304.

VI. Debt Service Coverage

The debt service coverage factor for the Parking Authority has been calculated as follows for the
year ended Jime 30,2015:

Total revenues $ 2,717,229
Interest and dividend income 15.235

Adjusted gross revenues 2,732,464

Total expenses 2.386.903
345,561

Add: Depreciation expense 390.455

Amount available for debt service and capital expenditures $ 736.016

Maximum annual debt service $ 440.387

Calculated debt service coverage factor 1.67

Required debt service coverage factor 1.20

Basedon this calculation, it appears that the ParkingAuthority was in compliance withthe
provisions set forth in its bond ordinance as ofJune 30,2015.

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral part of these notes.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

VIL Lease of Property

OnApril 30,2009,theCityof Morgantown Building Comniission entered into a lease agreement
with theWest Virginia University Board of Governors for the lease ofdocks to West Virginia
University. The lease payment is $756 per month and will be used to reduce the cost of the docks
of $90,720 expended by the Cityof Morgantown.

OnApril 30,2009,theCityof Morgantown Building Commission entered into a lease agreement
withPlatinum Properties Limited Liability Company for the lease of a parcel of real estate located
in theFirst Ward of theCity ofMorgantown to Platinum Properties Limited Liability Company.
This lease is fora period of 50years and requires Platinum Properties Limited Liability Company
to remit a rental payment of$1 per year.

OnJuly 1, 2008, theCity of Morgantown Building Commission entered into a lease agreement with
Mermaid Lunited Liability Company forthelease of the event center. This lease is fora period of
10years and requires Mermaid Limited Liability Company to remit payments of $5,240, to begin
12months after thedate theevent center opens forpublic use. Thefacility was completed and
open for public use in March 2010.

The balance receivable is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.

2016 $ 62,880
2017 62,880
2018 62,880
2019 62,880
2020 62,880
2021 374.123

$ 688.523

OnOctober 23,2012, the City of Morgantown Building Commission entered into an agreement
with West Virgima University Board of Govanors onbehalfofWest Virginia University whereby
theCity ofMorgantown Building Commission transferred certain real estate to West Virginia
University and in return West Virginia University is to paythe City ofMorgantown Building
Commission the sum of $4,200,000 on August31,2026,

The accompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The total balance of the accounts receivable is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.

2016 $ 100,000
2017 100,000
2018 100,000
2019 100,000
2020 100,000
2021 109,032
2022 -0-

2023 -0-
2024 -0-

2025 -0-

2026 709.668

$ 1.318.700

VIII. Deficit Fund Balance

It was noted during our audit that the Woodbum Property fund had a deficitfund balanceof
$14,848. The elimination of this deficit fimd balance is dependent onincreasing revenues and
decreasing expenses for this fund.

IX. Subsequent Events

The Cityhas considered all subsequent eventsthrough March 2,2016, the date the financial
statements were made available.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report is an integral partof these notes.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE

NET PENSION LIABILITY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Year Ended

June 30.2015

City's proportion ofthe net pension liability (asset) 0.36%

City'sproportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 1,315,320

City'scovered- employee payroll $ 1,151,193

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of its covered - employee payroll 115%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total pension liability 93.98%

Theinformation presented in theschedule of theproportionate share of thenetpension liability is theonlyyear
available as of June30,2015. TheCitywill be adding additional years to theaccompanying schedule as
information is available.

The accompanying independent auditor's reportand notesare integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Year Ended

June 30.2015

Contractually required contribution $ 161,167

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 161.167

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -Q-

City'scovered- employeepayroll $ 1,151,193

Contributions as a percentageofcovered- employee payroll 14.00%

The information presented in the schedule ofCity's contributions is the onlyyearavailable as ofJxme 30,2015.
The Citywill be adding additional years to the accompanying schedulesas information is available.

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Changes in Benefit Terms
There were no changes in benefit terms for the year ended June 30,2015.

Changes in Assumptions
There were no changes in assumptions for the year ended June 30,2015.

The information presented in the schedule ofproportionate share of the net pension liability and the schedule of
City's contributions is the only year available as ofJune 30,2015. The City will be adding additional years to
the accompanying schedules as information is available.

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS MULTTYEAR

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Year ending June 30, 2015 2014

Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 1,084,316 $ 1,008,137
Interest on the total pension liability 1,775,489 1,840,353
Benefit changes -0- -0-

Difference between expected and actual experience ( 1,590,303) -0-

Assumption changes 662,125 1,349,132
Benefit payments ( 1,496,332) ( 1,408,588)
Refunds -0- C 47.5481

Net change in total pension liability 435,295 2,741,486

Total pension liability - beginning 40.689.191 37.947.705

Total pension liability - ending (a) 41.124.486 40.689.191

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 1,070,305 1,013,374
Employee contributions 191,330 183,544
Pension plan net investment income 300,409 1,162,709
Benefit payments ( 1,496,332) ( 1,408,588)
Refunds -0- ( 47,548)
Pension plan administrative expense ( 1,943) ( 1,725)
Other -0- -0-

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 63,769 901,766

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 11.482.554 10.580.788

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 11.546.323 11.482.554

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 29.578.163 $ 29.206.637

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total
pension liability 28.08% 28.22%

Covered employee payroll $ 2.441.567 $ 2.453.297

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered
employee payroll 1,211.44% 1,190.51%

The accompanying independentauditor's report and notes are integralparts of this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY MULTIYEAR

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS (WHICH MAY BE BUILT PROSPECTWELY)
HREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Fy Ending June 30.

2014

2015

Total

Pension

Liability

Plan Net

Position

Net Pension

Liability

$ 40,689,191 $ 11,482,554 $ 29,206,637
$ 41,124,486 $ 11,546,323 $ 29,578,163

Plan Net Position

as a % ofTotal

Pension Liability

28.22%

28.08%

Coyered

Payroll

$ 2,453,297
$ 2,441,567

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotesare integral partsofthis schedule.
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Net Pension Liability

as a % of

Coyered Payroll

1,190.51%
1,211.44%



Fiscal Year Ended

06/30/2013

06/30/2014

06/30/2015

CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF CONTRIBUTIONS MULTIYEAR

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuariallv

Determined Employer State

Contribution Contribution Contribution

£ai

$ 1,841,042
$ 1,885,133
$ 1,890,064

£bl

$ 540,495
$ 578,330
$ 618,813

$ 464,202
$ 435,044
$ 451,492

Percentage

Contributed

ra)H(c)l/(a)

55%

54%

57%

Covered

Payroll

m

$ 2,447,766
$ 2,453,297
$ 2,441,567

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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Actual Contribution

as a % of

Covered Payroll

r(b)+(c)i/(f)

41%

41%

44%



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The inforaiation requested in the required supplementaryscheduleswas determinedas part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as ofthe latest actuarial valuation follows:

Measurement Date June 30,2015, measurement date based on actuarial liabilities
as ofJuly 1,2014

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal, Level-Percentage-of-Pay

Actuarial Value ofAssets Market value used for GASB Nos. 67 and 68 reporting

Contribution Policy and
Amortization Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate ofReturn

GASB 67/68 Discount Rate

Projected Salary Increases

Cost ofLiving Increases

The sponsor finances benefits using the Altemative
funding policy as defined in state statue. Sponsor contributions
are equal to 107 percent of the prior year contribution. The plan
also receives state contributions based on an allocation of
premium tax that depends on the number ofactive and retired
members. This funding policy does not directly amortize the
imfunded actuarial liability. However, projected sponsor, state
and member contributions along with projected investment
earnings are not expected to fully fund the projected actuarial
liability for current plan members, and assets for the closed plan
are projected to be depleted by 2035.

5.000% per year

4.451% per year at June 30,2015, and 4.565% at June 30,2014

9.000% with one year of service, 4.500% with two years of
service, 2.000% with three to four years of service and 1.000%
after

3.000% on first $15,000 ofAnnual Benefit and on the
accumulated supplemental pension amounts for prior years

The accompanyingindependent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FIREMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Single Discount Rate

A GASB Nos. 67 and 68 single discount rate of4.451% was used tomeasure thetotal pension liability
asofJune 30, 2015. This single discount rate was based on the expected rate ofreturn onpension plan
investments of 5.000%, and themunicipal bond rate of 3.800%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine this single discount rate assumed that thePlan sponsor would make the statutory required
contribution as defined by the funding policy. Based onthese assumptions, thepension plan's fiduciary
netposition wasprojected to be available to makeprojected future benefit payments, on behalfof
current plan members, until plan year end 2035. Therefore, the singlediscountrate of4.451 % was
applied to allperiods ofprojected benefit payments to determine thetotal pension liability.

Regarding the sensitivity of the netpension liability to changes in the single discount rate, the following
presents the plan's net pension liability,calculated using a single discoimt rate of4.451%, as well as
whatthe plan's netpension liability would be ifit werecalculated usinga single discount rate that is
1-percentage-pointlower or 1-percentage-pointhigher.

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability
to the Single Discount Rate Assumption

Current Single

Discoimt

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase

3.451% 4.451% 5.451%

$ 35,970,070 $ 29,578,163 $ 24,430,831

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotesare integral partsof this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS MULTIYEAR

POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Year ending June 30, 2015 2014

Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 1,410,460 $ 1,376,895
Interest on the total pension liability 2,333,177 2,364,924
Benefit changes -0- -0-
Difference between expected andactual experience ( 935,554) -0-
Assumption changes 927,148 1,904,795
Benefit payments ( 1,974,707) ( 1,896,160)
Refimds { 33.200) ( 22.672)

Net change in total pension liability 1,727,324 3,727,782

Total pension liability - beginning 52.489.702 48.761.920

Total pension liability - ending (a) 54.217.026 52.489.702

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 1,299,492 1,236,729
Employee contributions 343,444 260,782
Pension plan net investment income 372,888 1,430,259
Benefit payments ( 1,974,707) ( 1,896,160)
Refimds ( 33,200) ( 22,672)
Pension plan administrative expense ( 1,344) ( 1,275)
Other ^ ^

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 6,573 1,007,663

Plan fiduciary net position - begirming 14.472.339 13.464.676

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 14.478.912 14.472.339

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 39.738.114 $ 38.017.363

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total
pension liability 26.71% 27.57%

Covered employee payroll $ 3.381.767 $ 3.514.416

Net pension liability as a percentage ofcovered
employee payroll 1,175.07% 1,081.75%

The accompanying independentauditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY MULHYEAR

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS (WHICH MAY BE BUILT PROSPEdWELY)
POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FY Ending June 30.

2014

2015

Total

Pension

Liability

Plan Net

Position

Net Pension

Liability

$ 52,489,702 $ 14,472,339 $ 38,017,363
$ 54,217,026 $ 14,478,912 $ 39,738,114

Plan Net Position

as a % ofTotal

Pension Liability

27.57%

26.71%

Coyered

Payroll

$ 3,514,416
$ 3,381,767

The accompanying independentauditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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Net Pension Liability

as a % of

Coyered Payroll

1,081.75%
1,175.07%



Fiscal Year Ended

06/30/2013

06/30/2014

06/30/2015

aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF CONTRIBUTIONS MULHYEAR

POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuariallv

Determined Employer State

Contribution Contribution Contribution

lil

$ 2,339,128
$ 2,480,580
$ 2,478,419

lb)

$ 629,555
$ 673,624
$ 720,778

{cl

$ 821,786
$ 563,105
$ 578,714

Percentage

Contributed

rfbH(c^1/fa^

62%

50%

52%

Covered

Payroll

m

$ 3,281,961
$ 3,514,416
$ 3,381,767

The accompanying independent auditor'sreport and notes are integralparts of this schedule.
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Actual Contribution

as a % of

Covered Payroll

r(bH(c)l/(fl

44%

35%

38%



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The information requested inthe required supplementary schedules was determined aspart ofthe actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as ofthe latest actuarial valuation follows:

MeasurementDate June 30,2015, measurement date based on actuarial liabilities
as of July 1,2014

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal, Level-Percentage-of-Pay

Actuarial Value ofAssets Market value used for GASBNos. 67 and 68 reporting

Contribution Policy and
Amortization Method

ActuarialAssumptions:

Investment Rate ofReturn

GASB 67/68 Discount Rate

Projected Salary Increases

Cost ofLiving Increases

The sponsor financesbenefits using the Alternative
fundingpolicy as definedin state statue. Sponsorcontributions
are equal to 107percentof the prior year contribution. The plan
also receives state contributions based on an allocation of
premium tax that depends on the number ofactive and retired
members. This funding policy does not directly amortize the
unfunded actuarial liability. However, projectedsponsor, state
and member contributions along with projected investment
earnings are not expected to fully fund the projected actuarial
liability for currentplan members, and assets for the closedplan
are projected to be depleted by 2036.

5.000% per year

4.432% per year at June 30, 2015, and 4.552% at Jime 30,2014

9.000% with one year of service, 4.500% with two years of
service, 2.000% with three to four years ofservice and 1.000%
after

3.000% on first $15,000 ofArmual Benefit and on the
accumulated supplemental pension amounts for prior years

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

POLICEMEN'S PENSION AND RELIEF FUND (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Single Discount Rate

A GASB Nos. 67 and 68 single discountrate of 4.432%was used to measure the total pension liability
as of June 30,2015. This single discount ratewasbasedon the expected rateof returnon pension plan
investments of5.000%, and the municipal bond rate of3.800%. Tlie projection ofcash flows used to
determine this single discountrate assumedthat the Plan sponsorwould make the statutoryrequired
contribution as definedby the funding policy. Based on these assumptions, the pensionplan's fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments, on behalfof
currentplan members, until plan year end 2036. Therefore, the single discount rate of4.432% was
appliedto all periods ofprojectedbenefit payments to determinethe total pensionliability.

Regarding the sensitivityofthe net pension liabilityto changes in the singlediscountrate, the following
presents the plan's net pension liability, calculatedusing a single discount rate of4.432%, as well as
what the plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculatedusing a single discount rate that is
1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher.

Sensitivity ofNet Pension Liability
to the Single Discount Rate Assumption

Current Single

Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase

3.432% 4.432% 5.432%

$ 48,537,609 $ 39,738,114 $ 32,700,769

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotesare integral partsof this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND RELATED RATIOS MULTIYEAR

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Year ending June 30, 2015 2014

Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 1,408,684 $ 1,578,745
Interest on the total pension liability 3,873,941 3,788,795
Benefit changes -0- -0-
Differencebetween expectedand actual experience ( 1,013,053) ( 255,545)
Assumption changes -0- ( 970,431)
Benefit payments ( 2,650,584) ( 2,479,097)
Refunds ( 170.1641 ( 212.6191

Net change in total pension liability 1,448,824 1,449,848

Total pension liability - beginning 55.319.845 53.869.997

Total pension liability - ending (a) 56.768.669 55.319.845

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 1,879,379 1,572,414
Employee contributions 725,508 699,093
Pension plan net investment income 1,992,100 5,680,536
Benefit payments ( 2,650,584) ( 2,479,097)
Refunds ( 170,164) ( 212,619)
Pension plan administrative expense ( 41,215) ( 40,192)
Other 5.261 1.861

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,740,285 5,221,996

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 45.896.507 40.674.511

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 47.636.792 45.896.507

Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 9.131.877 $ 9.423.338

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage oftotal
pension liability 83.91% 82.97%

Covered employee payroll' $ 12.172.614 $ 11.880.381

Net pension liability as a percentage ofcovered
employee payroll 75.02% 79.32%

' Covered employeepayroll isbased on pensionablepayrollfor membership data used in the actuarial valuation asofthe same date.

10fiscal years will be builtprospectively.

The accompanying independentauditor's report and notes are integralparts of this schedule.
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aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGBSfIA
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY MULTIYEAR

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FY Ending June 30.

2014

2015

Total Plan Net Position

Pension Plan Net Net Pension as a % ofTotal

Liability Position Liability Pension Liability

$ 55,319,845 $ 45,896,507 $ 9,423,338 82.97%
$ 56,768,669 $ 47,636,792 $ 9,131,877 83.91%

Covered

Payroll'

$ 11,880,381
$ 12,172,614

Net Pension Liability

as a % of

Covered Payroll

79.32%

75.02%

' Covered employeepayroll is based on pensionablepayrollformembership data used in the actuarial valuation asofthe same date.

10fiscal years will be built prospectively.

The accompanying independent auditor's report andnotesare integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS MULHYEAR

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND RELIEF FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuariallv Contribution Actual Contribution

Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a % of

FY Endine June 30. Contribution^ Contribution fExcessl Payroll' Covered Payroll

2006 $ 660,556 $ 653,297 $ 7,259 $ 8,996,728 7.26%

2007 773,719 864,201 ( 90,482) 9,990,727 8.65%

2008 810,248 898,077 ( 87,829) 10,385,815 8.65%

2009 860,984 758,122 102,862 10,994,139 6.90%

2010 1,137,893 930,998 206,895 10,687,987 8.71%

2011 1,261,182 1,151,765 109,417 11,040,216 10.43%

2012 1,303,850 1,314,738 ( 10,888) 11,526,601 11.41%

2013 1,921,461 1,379,087 542,374 11,908,975 11.58%

2014 2,116,999 1,574,275 542,724 11,880,381 13.25%

2015 1,850,655 1,879,379 ( 28,724) 12,172,614 15.44%

^Covered employeepayroll isbased on pensionablepayrollfor membership data used in the actuarial valuation asofthe same date.

^ADCforyears ending 2006 through 2014 based on GASB 25; ADCfor 2015 andlater based on the Fund's adoptedfundingpolicy.

10fiscal years will be builtprospectively.

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PENSION AND RELIEF

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Valuation Date:

Notes

July 1,2015

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
July 1, which is 24 months prior to the end ofthe fiscal year in
which the contributions will be made.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate ofReturn

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:

Notes

Individual Entry Age Normal

Level dollar, closed

21 years

5-year smoothed market

3.0% - approximate; No explicit price inflation assumption is
used in this valuation.

4.0% per year

7.00% per year, net ofexpenses, compounded annually

Experience-based table ofrates that are specific to the type of
eligibility condition and years ofservice.

Pre-retirement mortality is assumed to follow 85% ofthe 1994
Group Annuity Mortality table for Males and Females. Post-
retirement mortality is assumed to follow the 1994 Group
Annuity Mortality Table for Males and Females. Post-
disablement mortality is assumed to follow the 1994 Group
Annuity Mortality Table for Males and Females set forward 4
years.

There were no benefit changes during the year.

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PENSION AND RELIEF (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Single Discount Rate

A single discount rate of 7.00% was used to measure the total pension liability. This single discount
rate was based on the expected rate ofreturn on pension plan investmentsof7.00%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that the plan member contributions will
be made at rates equal to the differencebetween actuariallydetermined contributionrates and the
member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate ofretum on pension plan investments was applied to all periods ofprojected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Regarding the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the single discount rate, the following
presents the plan's net pension liability, calculatedusing a single discount rate of7.00%, as well as what
the plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate that is one
percent lower or one percent higher.

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability
to the Single Discount Rate Assumption

Current Single

Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%

$ 15,662,435 $ 9,131,877 $ 3,588,360

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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MORGANTOWN UTILITY BOARD

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN)
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE

NET PENSION LIABILITY

JUNE 30, 2015

Employees* Retirement Benefit Fund of the City of Morgantown
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2015

Board's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (percentage) 57.33%

Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 5,235,305

Board's covered - employee payroll $ 6,935,715

Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a
percentage ofits covered - employee payroll 75.48%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 83.91%

Information prior tofiscal year 2014 is not available.

*Will be built prospectively.

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are integral parts of this schedule.
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MORGANTOWN UTILITY BOARD

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF MORGANTOWN)

SCHEDULES OF CONTRIBUTIONS

JUNE 30, 2015

Employees' Retitement Benefit Fund of the City of Motgantown
Last 10 Fiscal Years

Actuariallv Actual Contribution

Determined Actual Contribution Board's Covered as a % ofCovered
Fiscal Year Ended Contribution Contribution Deficit CSurDlus) Emnlovee Payroll Emnlovee Payroll

06/30/2006 $ 383,122 $( 381,732) $ 1,390 $ 5,152,093 7.41%

06/30/2007 $ 394,597 $( 439,266) $( 44,669) $ 5,682,716 7.73%

06/30/2008 $ 469,944 $( 522,183) $( 52,239) $ 6,071,770 8.60%

06/30/2009 $ 542,420 $( 475,353) $ 67,067 $ 5,861,334 8.11%

06/30/2010 $ 585,332 $( 478,911) $ 106,421 $ 5,778,093 8.29%

06/30/2011 $ 707,649 $( 646,270) $ 61,379 $ 6,246,232 10.35%

06/30/2012 $ 711,381 $( 717,285) $( 5,904) $ 6,078,627 11.80%

06/30/2013 $ 1,053,537 $( 756,125) $ 297,412 $ 6,403,272 11.81%

06/30/2014 $ 1,186,366 $( 882,191) $ 304,175 $ 6,623,068 13.32%

06/30/2015 $ 1,060,981 $ (1,077,497) $( 16,516) $ 6,935,715 15.54%

Theaccompanying independent auditor's report andnotes are integral partsof thisschedule.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING FUND BALANCE SHEETS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government Component Unit

Special Caoital Special Capital
Revenue Proiects Revenue Proiects

Funds Funds Total Funds Fimds Total

ASSETS

Cash $ 777,430 $ 48,424 $ 825,854 $ 348,018 $ -0- $ 348,018
Investments 705,851 -0- 705,851 -0- 236,997 236,997
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles)
Taxes -0- 132,133 132,133 -0- -0- -0-

Accounts 11,439 -0- 11,439 1,520 -0- 1,520
Grants 62,670 -0- 62,670 -0- -0- -0-

Due from/(to) other funds ( 26.000^ -0- ( 26.000) 059.397) ( 2.916) 062.313)

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1.53L390 $ 180.557 $ 1.711.947 $ 190.141 % 243.081 $ 424.222

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 71,827 $ -0- $ 71,827 $ 88,262 $ -0- $ 88,262
Accrued payroll and compensated

absences 2.389 -0- 2.389 74.740 -0- 74.740

Total habilities 74.216 -0- 74.216 163.002 -0- 163.002

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Deferred revenue - taxes -0- 110.957 110.957 -0- -0- -0-

Total deferred inflow ofresources -0- 110.957 110.957 -0- -0- -0-

Fund Balances

Restricted 144,550 -0- 144,550 -0- -0- -0-

Assigned 1,329,212 69,600 1,398,812 27,139 234,081 261,220

Unassigned f 16.588^ -0- ( 16.588) -0- -0- -0-

Total fund balances 1.457.174 69.600 1.526.774 27.139 234.081 261.220

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND

BALANCES S 1,531,390 $ 180.557 S 1.711.947 S 190.141 S 234.081 S 424.222

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthe combining financial
statements.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government Component Unit

Special Capital Special Capital
Revenue Projects Revenue Proiects

Funds Funds Total Funds Fxmds Total

Revenues

Charges for services $ 27,908 $ -0- $ 27,908 $ 1,571,017 $ -0- $ 1,571,017
Fines and forfeits 257,418 -0- 257,418 -0- -0- -0-

Investment income 4,646 198 4,844 1,360 3,390 4,750
Donations 40,294 -0- 40,294 104,996 80 105,076
Taxes:

Ad valorem -0- 1,179,644 1,179,644 -0- -0- -0-

Intergovernmental:
Federal 379,484 -0- 379,484 18,034 -0- 18,034
State 40,000 -0- 40,000 -0- -0- -0-

Local 3,305 -0- 3,305 -0- -0- -0-

Other -0- -0- -0- 62.114 -0- 62.114

Total revenues 753.055 1.179.842 1.932.897 1.757.521 3.470 1.760.991

Expenditures
General government 8,093 -0- 8,093 -0- -0- -0-

Public safety 136,116 -0- 136,116 -0- -0- -0-

Culture and recreation -0- -0- -0- 3,027,227 -0- 3,027,227
Community development 509,324 13,241 522,565 -0- -0- -0-

Benefit payments 775.344 -0- 775.344 -0- -0- -0-

Total expenditures 1.428.877 13.241 1.442.118 3.027.227 -0- 3.027.227

(Deficiency) excess ofrevenues (under)
over expenditures ( 675.822) 1.166.601 490.779 (1.266.706) 3.470 (1.266.236)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in 130,981 -0- 130,981 1,130,309 -0- 1,130,309
Operating transfers (out) -0- (1.191.137) (1.191.137) -0- -0- -0-

Total other financing sources (uses) 130.981 (1.191.137) (1.060.156) 1.130.309 -0- 1.130.309

(Deficiency) excess ofrevenues and
other financing soiuces (under) over
expenditures and other financing (uses) ( 544,841) ( 24,536) ( 569,377) ( 139,397) 3,470 ( 135,927)

Fund balance beginning of year 2.002.015 94.136 2.096.151 166.536 230.611 397.147

Fund balance end ofyear $ 1,457,174 % 69.600 $ 1.526.774 $ 27.139 S 234.081 % 261.220

The accompanying independentauditor's report and notes are an integral part of the combining financial
statements.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING FUND BALANCE SHEETS -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Communitv

Economic Development
Development Block Police

Grant Grant Forfeiture Grants

Local Law
Special Enforcement

Grant

Small
Cities I. C. White
Block Coal Propertv Woodbum Court
Grant Severance OPEB Trust Auction Property Technnlopv

$ 37,893
-0-

85
-0-

$ 362,349 $ 5,616
-0- -0-

$ -0-
-0-

$ -0-
-0-

$ 100,827
-0-

$ 255,897 $ 11,256 $
705,851 -0-

3,046
-0-

$461
-0-

Total

777,430
705,851

Comaonent
Unit

Board of
Parks and
Recreation

$ 348.018
-0-

ASSETS

Cash
Investments
Receivables (net ofallowances for

uncollectibles):
Accounts -0- 3,120 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,213 7,106 -0- 11,439 1,520
Interest -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Grants -0- 61,419 -0- 1,251 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 62,670 -0-

Due fix>m/(to) other funds -0- -0- :0r fl.OOOI iQ: -0- -0- -0- 125.0001 ( 26.000) fl59.397)

TOTAL ASSETS $ 37.893 $ 64.624 $ 362.349 $ $ ^ $ ^ $ m822 $ 961.748 $ 12.469 $(14.8.48) $Ml $ 1.531.390 $ 190.141

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and compensated absences

Total liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

-0- $ 61,419 $ -0- $ 853 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 7,815 $ -0- $ 1,740 $ -0- $ 71,827 $ 88,262
-0- 2.389 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 2.389 74.740
-0- 63,808 -0- 853 ::Q; :Qz -0- 7.815 -0- 1,740 -0- 74.216 163.002

37,893 816 -0- 5,014 -0- -0- 100,827 -0- -0- -0- -0- 144,550 -0-
-0- -0- 362,349 -0- -0- -0- -0- 953,933 12,469 -0- 461 1,329,212 27,139
-0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- f 16.588) -0-

00
00

-0-
37,893 816 362.349 5,014 :Qz 100.827 953.933 12,469 116.588) 461 1.457.174 27.139

37^893 $ 64.624 $ 362.349 $ 1862 $ $ $ 100.827 $ 961,748 $ 12.469 $(14.848) $4^ $ 1.53L390 $ 190.141

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integralpart of the combiningfinancial statements.
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Revenues

aXY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Communitv
Economic Development

Development Block Police
Grant Grant Forfeiture

Special
Grants

Small
Local Law Cities I. C. White

Enforcement Block Coal
Grant

Property Woodbum Court
Grant Severance OPEB Trust Auction Property Technology Total

Comaonent
Unit

Board of
Parks and
Recreation

Charges for services $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 27,393 $ 515 $ 27,908 $ 1,571,017
Fines and forfeits -0- -0- 257,418 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 257,418 -0-
Interest -0- 40 532 14 36 -0- -0- 4,012 -0- 12 -0- 4,646 1,360
Donations -0- -0- -0- 40,000 -0- -0- 294 -0- -0- -0- -0- 40,294 104,996
Intergovernmental:

Federal -0- 332,624 -0- 25,844 21,016 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 4). 379,484 18,034
State -0- -0- -0- 40,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 40,000 -0-

Miscellaneous -0- •0. -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 3.305 -0- 3.305 62.114

Total revenues -0- 332.664 257.950 105.858 21,052 -iQi 294 4.012 -0- 30.710 515 753.055 1.757.521

Expenditures
General govonment -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 8,039 -0- -0- 54 8,093 -0-
Public safety -0- -0- 112,094 -0- 24,022 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 136,116 -0-
Culture and recreation -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 3,027,227
Community development -0- 369,710 -0- 100,844 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 38,770 -0- 509,324 -0-
Benefit payments -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 775.344 -0- -0- -0- 775.344 -0-

Total expenditures -0- 369.710 112.094 100.844 24,022 -0- 783.383 -0- 38,770 _54 1.428.877 3.027.227

(Deficiency) excess of revenues (under) over expenditures -0- ( 37.0461 145.856 5.014 ( 2,970) 294 ( 779.371) -0- ( 8.060) 461 ( 675.822) (1.269.706)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in (out) -0- 50.206 393 -0- -0- (393) -0- 80.775 -0- -0- -0- 130.981 1.130..309

Total other financings sources (uses) -Q- 50.206 393 -0- -0- (393) -0- 80.775 -0- -0- 130.981 1.130.309

(Deficiency) excess of revenues and other financing sources
(under) over expenditures and other financing uses 13,160 146,249 5,014 ( 2,970) (393) 294 ( 698,596) -0- ( 8,060) 461 ( 544,841) ( 139,397)

Fund balance beginning ofyear 37,893 ( I2.344J 216.100 -0- 2,970 393 100.533 1.652.529 12,469 ( 8.528) 2.002.015 166.536

Fimd balance end ofyear $ 37.893 $ m S 362.349 $ 5.014 $ -0. $ ^ $ Ji])QJ22 $ 953,933 $ 12.469 $(16,588) $ 1.457.174 $ 27.139

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part of the combiningfinancial statements.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING FUND BALANCE SHEETS -

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government Component Unit

ASSETS

Business Tax

Improvement Increment

District Financing Total

Morgantown
Public Library
Capital Proiect

Clav Battelle

Branch

Total

Component

Unit

Cash $ 46,812 $ 1,612 $ 48,424 $ -0- $ -0-

Investments -0- -0- -0- 236,997 236,997
Taxes receivable -0- 132,133 132,133 -0- -0-

Grants receivable -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Due from/(to) other funds -0- -0- -0- ( 2.9161 ( 2.9161

TOTAL ASSETS $ 46,812 S 133.745 $ 180.557 <B 234.081 S 234.081

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts paj^ble $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-

Total liabilities -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Deferred revenue - taxes -0- 110.957 110.957 -0- -0-

Total deferred inflow ofresources -0- 110.957 110.957 -0- -0-

Fund Balances

Assigned 46.812 22.788 69.600 234.081 234.081

Total fund balances 46,812 22.788 69.600 234.081 234.081

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND

FUND BALANCES $ 46,812 $ 133.745 $ 180,557 S 234,081 S 234.081

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part of the combining financial
statements.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Primary Government Component Unit

Morgantown
Public Library

Business Tax Canital Proiect Total

Improvement Increment Clav Battelle Comnonen

District Financine Total Branch Unit

Revenues

Investment income $ 175 $ 23 $ 198 $ 3,390 $ 3,390

Donations -0- -0- -0- 80 80

Taxes;

Ad valorem -0- 1,179,644 1,179,644 -0- -0-

Intergovernmental:
Federal -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total revenues 175 1.179.667 1.179.842 3.470 3.470

Expenditures
Community development 12.509 732 13.241 -0- -0-

Total expenditures 12,509 732 13.241 -0- -0-

(Deficiency) excess ofrevenues (under)
over expenditures 02.3341 1.178.935 1.166.601 3.470 3.470

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Operating transfers (out) -0- n.191.1371 fl.191.1371 -0- -0-

Total other financing sources (uses) -0- n.191.1371 n.191.1371 -0- -0-

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses (12,334) ( 12,202) ( 24,536) 3,470 3,470

Fund balance beginning ofyear, restated 59,146 34.990 94.136 230.611 619.863

Fund balance end ofyear $ 46.812 $ 22,788 $ 69.600 S 234,081 $ 623,333

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integralpart of the combining financial
statements.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Policemen's

Pension

and Relief

Firemen's

Pension

and Relief

Employee's
Retirement

and Benefit Total

$ 15,047 $ 9,958 $ 1,696 $ 26,701
14,419,360 11,500,905 47,505,205 73,425,470

-0- -0- 135.830 135.830
14.434.407 11.510.863 47.642.731 73.588.001

-0- 599 5.938 6.537

-0- 599 5.938 6.537

Component Unit

Morgantown Public Library
Nonexpendable Endowment

Trust

$ 47,220
-0-

-0-

47.220

-0-

-0-

Fund Total

$ 12,292 $ 59,512
-0--0-

-0- -0-
12.292 59.512

-0- -0-

-0- -0-

Assets
Cash

Investments

Receivables:
Contributions
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Net Position
Held in trust $ 14.434.407 $ 11.510.264 $ 47.636.793 $ 73.581.464 $ 47.220 $ 12.292 $

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integralpart of this statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA

FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Policemen's
Pension

and Relief

Firemen's
Pension

and Relief

Employee's
Retirement
and Benefit

Component Unit
Morgantown Public Library

Nonexpendable Endowment
Total Trust Fund Total

Additions
Contributions:

Employer $ 720,778 $ 618,813 $ 1,879,379 $ 3,218,970 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-
Employee 343,444 191,330 725,508 1,260,282 -0- -0- -0-
Insurance premium tax allocation 578,714 451,492 -0- 1,030,206 -0- -0- -0-
Other -0- -0- 5.261 5.261 -0- -0- -0-
Total contributions 1.642.936 1.261.635 2.610.148 5.514.719 -0- -0- -0-

Investment Income:
Net appreciation (depreciation)

( 481,733) ( 418,397) ( 1,494,229)in fair value of investments ( 594,099) ( 888) 593 ( 295)
Gain (loss) on sale of investments 748,159 608,450 1,561,063 2,917,672 -0- -0- -0-
Interest and dividends 286.790 229.062 982.501 1.498.353 1.125 191 1.316
Total investment income 440.850 355.779 2.125.167 2.921.796 237 784 1.021

Miscellaneous 208 166 -0- 374 -0- -0- -0-

Total additions 2.083.994 1.617.580 4.735.315 8.436.889 237 784 1.021

Deductions
General and administrative 114,019 93,538 174,281 381,838 1,439 183 1,622
Contribution refunds 33,200 -0- 170,164 203,364 -0- -0- -0-
Benefit payments 1.974.707 1.496.332 2.650.584 6.121.623 -0- -0- -0-

Total deductions 2.121.926 1.589.870 2.995.029 6.706.825 1.439 183 1.622

Net increase (decrease) ( 37,932) 27,710 1,740,286 1,730,064 ( 1,202) 601 ( 601)
Net position - beginning ofyear 14.472.339 11.482.554 45.896.507 71.851.400 48,422 11.691 60.113

Net position - end ofyear $ 14.434.407 $ 11.510.264 $ 47.636.793 $ 73.581.464 $ 47,220 $ 12.292 $ 59.512

The accompanying independent auditor's report and notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Council
City ofMorgantown
Morgantown, West Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States ofAmerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Cityof Morgantown, WestVirginia, as of and for the yearended June 30,2015, andthe
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City ofMorgantown,
WestVirginia's basicfinancial statements andhaveissued ourreport thereon dated March 2,
2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Inplanning and performing ouraudit of the financial statements, weconsidered theCity of
Morgantown, West Virginia's internal control overfinancial reporting (internal control) to
determine theaudit procedures thatareappropriate in thecircumstances for thepurpose of
expressing ouropinions on thefinancial statements, butnot for thepurpose of expressing an
opinion on theeffectiveness of theCityof Morgantown, West Virginia's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cityof Morgantown, West
Virginia's internal control.

A deficiency in internalcontrolexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming theirassigned functions, to
prevent, or detect andcorrect, misstatements on a timely basis. A materialweakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control suchthat thereis a reasonable
possibility thata material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will notbe prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination ofdeficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

122N. Oak St. • P.O. Box 1916• Clarksburg, WV 26302-1916 • (304) 624-5564• Fax: (304)624-5582 • www.tetrickbartlettcom
1517 Mary Lou Retton • Fairmont, WV 26554 • (304) 366-2992 • Fax: (304) 366-2370
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Honorable Mayor and Council
Cityof Morgantown Page 2

Our consideration of internal control was for the limitedpurposedescribed in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controlthat mightbe
materialweaknesses or significantdeficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part ofobtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City ofMorgantown, West
Virginia's financial statements are free ofmaterial misstatement, we performed tests ofits
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective ofour audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results ofour tests disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope ofour testing of intemal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinionon the effectiveness of
the entity's intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part ofan audit
performedin accordance with GovernmentAuditingStandards in considering the entity'sintemal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communicationis not suitable for any other purpose.

, Pa a C

March 2,2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A'133

To the Honorable Mayor and Council
City ofMorgantown
Morgantown, West Virginia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Morgantown, West Virginia's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 ComplianceSupplementthat
could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of Morgantown, West Virginia's major
federal programs for the year ended June 30,2015. City ofMorgantown, West Virginia'smajor
federal programs are identified in the summary ofauditor's results section ofthe accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Managementis responsible for compliancewith the requirementsof laws, regulations, contracts,
and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibilityis to express an opinion on compliance for each ofCity ofMorgantown, West
Virginia'smajor federal programsbased on our audit ofthe types of compliancerequirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit ofcompliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the UnitedStatesofAmerica; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government AuditingStandards, issued by the ComptrollerGeneralof the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Proflt
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types ofcompliance
requirements referred to abovethat couldhave a direct andmaterial effecton a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of
Morgantown, West Virginia'scompliancewith those requirements and performingsuch other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of
Morgantown, West Virginia's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City ofMorgantown, West Virginia,complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referredto above that couldhave a direct and material
effect on each ofits major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2015.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Cityof Morgantown, WestVirginia, is responsible for establishing and
maintainingeffective intemal control over compliance with the types ofcompliancerequirements
referred to above. In planning andperforming our auditof compliance, we considered the City
ofMorgantown, WestVirginia's intemal control over compliance with the types ofrequirements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion oncompliance foreach major federal program and to testand report on intemal control
overcompliance in accordance withOMB Circular A-133, but not for thepurpose of expressing
an opinion on theeffectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express anopinion on theeffectiveness ofthe City ofMorgantown, West Virgima's intemal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design oroperation ofa control
over compliance does notallow managanent or employees, in the normal course of performing
theirassigned functions, to prevent, or detect andcorrect, noncompliance witha type of
compliance requirement ofa federal program ona timely basis. Amaterial weakness in intemal
controlovercompliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will notbe prevented, ordetected and corrected, on
a timely basis. Asignificant deficiency in intemalcontrol overcompliance is a deficiency, or a
combination ofdeficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type ofcompliance
requirement ofa federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control
over compliance yetimportant enough to meritattention by thosecharged withgovemance.

Our consideration of intemal controlover compliance was for the limitedpurpose describedin
the first paragraph of this section and was notdesigned to identify alldeficiencies in intemal
control over compliance thatmight be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Wedid
notidentify any deficiencies in intemal control overcompliance that weconsider to bematerial
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements ofOMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

(JjJt^Jc. ' B<=uuLicU, PAAC

March 2,2016
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

A Summary ofAudit Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Deficiencyfs) identified not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

FederalAwards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Deficiencyfs) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are requiredto be reported in accordance
with section .510(a) ofCircular A-133?

Identification ofmajor programs:

United States DepartmentofTransportation/Federal Aviation Administration
Airport Improvement Program

United States Department ofHousing and Urban Development/Office
of Community Planning and Development

Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee
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Unmodified Opinion

No

None reported

No

No

None reported

Unmodified Opinion

No

CFDA#20.106

CFDA #14.218

$300.000

yes X no



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit

No Findings

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Program Audit

United States Department ofTransportation - Federal Aviation Administration -
Airport Improvement Program - CFDA Number 20.106 - Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2015; United States Department ofHousing and Urban Development - Office of
Community Planning and Development —Community Development Block
Grant/Entitlement Grants - CFDA Number 14.218- Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015.

There were no findings and questioned costs identified in the major federal award program audit.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

United States Department of Transportadon

Federal Aviation Administration

Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Improvement Program

National Hiehwav Traffic Safetv Administration
IVest Virginia Department ofTransportation
Alcohol Impair^ Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants 1
Alcohol Open Container Requirements
Alcohol Open Container Requirements

Total United States Department ofTransportation

United States Department ofJustice

Bureau of Justice Assistance

Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

Bureau of Justice Assistance

State ofWest Virginia Division ofCriminal Justice Service
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

Federal

CFDA

Number Grant Number

20.106 3-54-0015-034-2012

20.106 3-54-0015-035-2013

20.106 3-54-0015-036-2014

20.601 F13HS-18-154

20.607 F14-HS-18-405B

20.607 F14-HS-18-410

16.738 2013-DJ-BX-0440

16.738

16.738
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Program

or Award

Amount

1,131,824
1,185,422

154,100

60,000
15,000
30,000

22,378

16,329
16,329

Receipts or
Revenues

Recognized

65,409
150,998
149.129

365.536

33,873
12,219
4.970

51.062

416.598

21.016

5,198
8.471

13.669

Federal

Disbursements/

Expenditures

65,409
150,998
149.129

365.536

33,873
12,219
4.970

51.062

416.598

21.016

5,198
8.471

13.669



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

Violence Against Women Office

State ofWest Virginia Division ofCriminal Justice Services
ARRA - Violence Against Women Formula Grants

Office ofCommunity Oriented Policing Services

ARRA - Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing
Grants

Total United States Department of Justice

United States Environmental Protection Agency/Office of Solid
Waste and Emergency Response

West Virginia University

ARRA - Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative
Agreement

Total United States Environmental Protection Agency

Federal

CFDA

Number Grant Number

16.588 ll-VAW-005

16.710 2011UMWX0203

Program Receipts or Federal
or Award Revenues Disbursements/

Amount Recognized Expenditures

$ 8,000 $ 6.651 $ 6.651

552,903 184.301 184.301

225.637 225.637

66.818 BF-97333401-1 30,000 25.844

25.844

25.844

25.844
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTD)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office ofCommunity Planning and Development

Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants

Total United States Department ofHousing and Urban
Development

Total Federal Fund

Federal

CFDA

Number Grant Number

Program Receipts or Federal

or Award Revenues Disbursements/

Amount Recognized Expenditures

14.218 B-15-MC-54-0007 $ 500,000 $ 350.658 $ 350.658

350.658 350.658

$ 1.018.737 $ 1.018.737

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying schedule offederal awards is a summary ofthe activity ofthe City ofMorgantown, West Virginia's federal award programs and presents
transactions that would be included in financial statements of the City ofMorgantown presented on the accrual basis of accounting as contemplated by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

United States Department of Transportation - Federal Aviation Administration - Airport
Improvement Program - CFDA Number 20.106- Year Ended June 30,2014; United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development - Office of Community Planning and
Development - Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants - CFDA Number
14.218 - Year Ended June 30,2014.

There were no prior audit findings.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Balance June 30,2014 $ 125,697

Revenues received:

Passenger facility charges 30,056
Interest income 9

Disbursements:

Capital improvements (145,480)

Balance June 30,2015 $ 10.282

The accompanying independentauditor's report is an integral part ofthis schedule.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER
FACILITY CHARGES PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

The Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofMorgantown

Morgantown, West Virginia

Compliance

We have auditedthe complianceof the CityofMorgantown, West Virginiawith the compliance
requirements described in thePassenger Facility Charge Audit Guide forPublic Agencies, issued
by theFederal Aviation Administration (Guide), forits passenger facility charge program forthe
year ended June 30,2015. Compliance with therequirements of laws and regulations applicable
to its passenger facility charge program is the responsibility of the Cityof Morgantown, West
Virginia's management. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on theCityof Morgantown,
West Virginia's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our auditof compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States ofAmerica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedStates; and the
Guide. Those standards and the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whethernoncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidenceabout the City ofMorgantown,
WestVirginia's compliance withthose requirements andperforming suchotherprocedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Webelieve that our auditprovides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Ourauditdoesnotprovide a legaldetermination of the Cityof Morgantown,
West Virginia's, compliance with those requirements.

Inour opinion. Cityof Morgantown, West Virginia complied, in allmaterial respects, withthe
requirements referred to above thatareapplicable to its passenger facility charge program forthe
year ended June 30,2015.
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The Honorable Mayor and Council of
the City ofMorgantown Page 2

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City ofMorgantown, West Virginia is responsible for establishing and
maintainingeffective intemal control over compliance with requirements of laws and regulations
applicableto the passengerfacilitychargeprogram. In planningand performing our audit, we
consideredthe City ofMorgantown, West Virginia's intemal control over compliancewith
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passengerfacility charge program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and reporton the intemal control over compliance in accordance with
Guide.

Our consideration of the intemal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the intemal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation ofone or more ofthe intemal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws and regulations that would be material in relationto the passengerfacility
chargeprogrambeing auditedmay occur and not be detectedwithina timelyperiod by
employees in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the intemal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This report is intended solelyfor the information and use of the Mimicipal Officials of the Cityof
Morgantown, West Virginia and the Federal Aviation Administration and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyoneother than these specified parties. However, this restriction is
not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter ofpublic record.

March 2,2016
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